

#### Preparing every student to thrive in a global society.

#### REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) RFP-22-17-18

### ARCHITECTURAL/ENGINEERING SERVICES DW Infrastructure – Synthetic Turf Field (AH, JL, OG, PH, YB)

#### **April 2, 2018**

East Side Union High School District (ESUHSD) is seeking proposals from the Board approved pool of District-qualified architectural design firms to provide architectural services for the aforementioned project.

The Request for Proposals (RFP) must be received by 2:00 P.M. on April 18, 2018, electronically submitted to CapPurchasing@esuhsd.org and AMorrison@gilbaneco.com. In subject line of the email please type: "RFP-22-17-18 A/E Services for the DW Infrastructure –Synthetic Turf Field (AH, JL, OG, PH, YB)".

Proposal received after the due date and time cannot be accepted.

#### 1. Project Description:

The East Side Union High School District is soliciting design services in support of their District Wide Football Field and Track Renovations project. This project will take place at 5 sites: Andrew Hill High School, James Lick High School, Oak Grove High School, Piedmont Hills High School, and Yerba Buena High School. These facilities, installed approximately 11 years ago, will receive new surfaces, any necessary repairs to supporting infrastructure and, if budget allows, minor improvements.

The total construction Budget for both fields together is \$9M.

#### 2. Scope of Services

The scope of services shall include design, preparation of construction documents, provide engineer's estimate, bid support and construction administration services and project closeout, per the District's Master Agreement for Architectural Services and Work Authorization (Attachment A). Below is an example of some responsible duties:

East Side Union High School District Board of Trustees

Lan Nguyen, President

- ➤ Prepare plans and specifications to define the area of work and associated details for each item for the repairs.
- ➤ Perform site visit to determine the existing asphalt structural (AC and AB) for performing pavement repairs.
- Attend meetings, review schedule and technical submittals, review pay app request and sign off.

Project delivery method will be design-bid-build.

All design work shall comply with the District's Facilities Design and Construction Standards located at: <a href="http://www.esuhsd.org/Community/Facilities/Design-Standards/Design-and-Construction-Standards/">http://www.esuhsd.org/Community/Facilities/Design-Standards/Design-and-Construction-Standards/</a>

#### 3. Reference Documents and Attachments

Attachments to this RFP are as follows:

- Attachment A Master Agreement for Architectural Services
- Exhibit 1 Consultant Info-Signature required (Include with submission)
- Exhibit 2 Conflict of Interest Form. Complete and sign the form and include with your proposal submission
- **Exhibit 3** –
- Exhibit 4 –

#### 4. General Instructions

- Questions and Clarifications:
  - All questions and clarification regarding this RFP shall be made IN WRITING and email to <u>CapPurchasing@esuhsd.org</u>, copy Alex Morrison at <u>Amorrison@gilbaneco.com</u> no later than Wednesday, April 11, 2018 by 2:00 P.M. All emails received will be acknowledged.
- ESUHSD is responsible only for what is expressly stated in this RFP and written addenda thereto. The District is not responsible for and will not be bound by any person not authorized to act on its behalf.
- As of the issuance date of this RFP and continuing until the date for submission of proposals, communications with ESUHSD employees pertaining to this RFP is strictly limited. Personnel representing ESUHSD will not conduct meetings, conferences or conversations, or exchange written communications with firms and/or individuals who are considering responding to this RFP. A firm whose representatives are found to be acting in any way contrary to this directive will be disqualified from entering into any contract that may result from this RFP.

#### 5. Proposal Submission Format

• Respondents are required to submit a proposal for the entire Project scope.

- Interested firms shall respond in accordance with the direction provided below. Proposals shall not exceed twelve (12) pages, excluding front and back covers, tabs and exhibits.
  - Tab A) Cover letter should introduce the firm and capacity to expedite ESUHSD projects. It should also introduce proposed team, provide acknowledgements of review of the RFP and must be signed by an authorized officer of the firm.

#### Tab B) Proposed Team

- Resumes for key project personnel proposed for this project, delineating professional qualifications and relevant project and DSA experience.
- Indicate availability for each key project team member.
- Include an organization chart and roles and responsibilities.
- Indicate previous work experience with proposed sub consultants (if any).
- At a minimum, it is anticipated that the successful firm will require the services of structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing and landscape engineers.
- Provide firm's information on each proposed sub-consultant.

#### Tab C) Proposed Approach to:

- Design of this project.
- DSA and other jurisdictional agency coordination and permitting if necessary.
- Bidding, Construction Administration and QA/QC services.
- Meeting and maintaining the critical schedule of this project.
- Proposed Schedule, provide detail start to finish

#### Tab D) Proposed Fee

- Total Fee.
- Provide hourly rates and fee breakdown fee by team member and tasks.
- If project exceeds the preliminary anticipated scope and/or schedule, specify if/how firm will approach additional service consideration.
- Other expenses identify (if none, so state).
- The District will not pay:
  - Mileage charges
  - Per diem charges
- Tab E) The awarded firm will be required to work under the terms of their existing Master Agreement for Architectural/Engineering Services, or execute the District's Agreement for Architectural Services (Attachment A) with no contract term changes (if firm is not currently working under a master Agreement). Provide a statement pertaining to the firm's ability to work under those contract conditions. If respondent will take issue with any contract terms, statement should clarify with specificity any exclusion, clarifications, assumptions or concerns pertaining to the Agreement.

- Tab F) Exhibit 1 Consultant Info-Signature required
- Tab G) Exhibit 2 Conflict of Interest Form. Complete and sign the form and include with your proposal submission.
- Respondents may not withdraw their proposal for a period of ninety (90) calendar days after the date set for receipt of proposals.

#### 6. Proposal Evaluation Criteria and Process

Written proposals will undergo a technical screening by Capital Purchasing Department. All responsive proposals will be reviewed and evaluated against the following criteria from an evaluation panel/process established by ESUHSD. Each criteria will be weighted as Indicated:

- Proposed Team (25 points)
- Proposed Approach (25 points)
- Experience (15 points)
- Fee Proposal (35 points)

This request does not constitute an offer of employment or to contract for services. The District reserves the right to award the contract to the architectural firm that presents the proposal that, in the judgment of the District, best accomplishes the desired results.

#### 7. Schedule Requirements

April 2, 2018	Issuance of Request for Proposals
April 11, 2018 by 2:00P.M.	Request for Information (RFI) must be submitted to Capital Purchasing - ESUHSD
April 13, 2018 by 2:00P.M.	Issuance of final addenda (if needed)
April 18, 2018 by 2:00P.M.	Proposals Due (electronically)
<b>April 18, 2018 by 2:00P.M.</b> May 2018	Proposals Due (electronically)  Contract recommendation to Board of Trustees
·	•

#### 8. Reservations

With respect to this RFP, the District reserves certain rights at any time, as follows:

- 1. Reject any proposal without indicating any reason for such rejection;
- 2. Waive or correct any minor or inadvertent defect, irregularity or technical error in a proposal, or in the RFP process, or as part of any subsequent contract negotiation;
- 3. Request that respondents supplement or modify all or certain aspects of their proposals or other documents or materials submitted;

- 4. Request that respondents make an oral and/or written presentation if more information is deemed necessary;
- 5. Terminate this RFP and issue a new RFP;
- 6. Modify the selection process, the specifications or requirements for materials or services, or the content or format of the proposals;
- 7. Extend a deadline specified in this RFP, including deadlines for accepting proposals:
- 8. Terminate failed negotiations with a respondent without liability, and negotiate with other respondents;
- 9. Disqualify any respondent on the basis of a real or apparent conflict of interest, or evidence of collusion that is disclosed by the proposal or other information available to the District:
- 10. Request that services be provided by certain staff of a respondent, or request that certain staff of a respondent be excluded from providing services as determined by the District to be in its best interest;
- 11. Reject a respondent's proposal where the respondent is in breach of, or in default under, any other agreement with the District;
- 12. Award multiple contracts if it is deemed necessary to provide the specified services.
- 13. Costs of preparation of proposals will be borne by the proposer.

#### END OF DOCUMENT

Architectural Engineering Services

# Exhibit 1 – Consultant Information/Signature Page Page 1 of 2

The Consultant shall furnish the following information. <u>Failure to comply with this requirement will render the proposal incomplete and may cause its rejection.</u> Please fill out the un-shaded sections in the form below. Also, additional sheets may be attached if necessary. "You" or "your" as used herein refers to the consultant's firm and any of its officers, directors, shareholders, parties and principals.

	Consultant Information/Signature Page	
Firm Nar	ne	
Firm Addre	SS	
Firm Telepho	ne	
Firm Fax Numb	er	
Firm Em	ail	
Type of Fi		
(Mark an 'X' for t		
appropriate or	Corporation	
	Joint Venture	
Firm's T		
Primary Conta Nar		
Primary Contac Telepho		
Primary Contac Em		
	within the past five (5) years been involved in litigation ncy particularly any school district? (Please answer Yes	
If Yes, explain, and provide case name and number:		
Have you ever faile answer Yes or No)	ed to complete a project in the last three years? (Please	
If yes, give owner and details:		

Architectural Engineering Services

## Exhibit 1 – Consultant Information/Signature Page Page 2 of 2

#### **Consultant's Representations**

Signature

Consultant understands, agrees, and warrants:

- 1. That Consultant has carefully read and fully understands the information that was provided by ESUHSD to serve as the basis for submission of this proposal.
- 2. That Consultant has the capability to successfully undertake and complete the responsibilities and obligations of the proposal being submitted.
- 3. That all information contained in the proposal is true and correct to the best of Consultant's knowledge.
- 4. That Consultant did not, in any way, collude, conspire or agree, directly or indirectly, with any person, firm, corporation or other Consultant in regard to the amount, terms, or conditions of this proposal.
- 5. That Consultant did not receive unauthorized information from: Any ESUHSD staff member or Consultant during the Proposal period except as provided for in the Request for Qualifications package, addenda thereto, or the pre-proposal conference, if applicable.
- 6. That by submission of this proposal, the Consultant acknowledges that ESUHSD has the right to make any inquiry it deems appropriate to substantiate or supplement information supplied by Consultant and Consultant hereby grants ESUHSD permission to make said inquiries, and to provide any and all requested documentation in a timely manner.
- 7. That funding for any resulting contract is contingent on adequacy and availability.
- 8. To comply with ESUHSD's insurance provisions, to provide appropriate indemnification for ESUHSD and to hold ESUHSD harmless from Consultant's performance of the contract.

9. Receipt and acc	eptance of the following	addenda is hereb	y acknowledged:	
No	, Dated			
No	, Dated			
No	, Dated			
Consultant's Signa No Proposal shall I below:	ture be accepted which has	s not been signed	l in ink in the approp	riate space
Print Name				Corporate Seal If applicable
Print Title			_	

Date



#### CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENT East Side Union High School District (Consultants)

[This form must be filled out, signed, dated and submitted by all persons seeking to serve as a consultant to the District]

Board Policy 3600 of the East Side Union High School District provides in part:

"Independent contractors applying for a consultant contract shall submit a written conflict of interest statement disclosing financial interests as determined necessary by the Superintendent or designee, depending on the range of duties to be performed by the consultant. The Superintendent or designee shall consider this statement when deciding whether to recommend the consultant's employment."

The Superintendent has determined that all persons seeking to serve as a consultant to the

District shall fill out truthfully, sign, date and submit this Conflict of Interest Statement prior to performing any consultant work or services for the District.

I, \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_ [NAME OF CONSULTANT], hereby certify the following:

1. I am not an employee of the District.

2. Within the past year I have not been a member of the District Board of Trustees of the District.

3. Neither I nor any member of my immediate family (includes parent, spouse, domestic partner, or child) or member or resident of my household is a member of the District's Citizens Bond Oversight Committee for the District's Measure G or Measure E bond programs.

4. Within the past year I have not provided or made, and will not provide or make, any promise of any gift¹ of any kind (money, meals, goods, services, entertainment tickets, etc.), in-kind services, commission, or fully or partially expense-paid trips to any District Board Member or District employee whose responsibilities include the selection of District consultants or the evaluation, supervision or oversight of District consultants (a "Responsible Employee"), except:

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> "Gifts" do not include promotional or advertising items such as calendars, desk pads, notebooks and other office items valued less than \$25.00 and which are of the type usually offered by business concerns free of charge to all as part of their public relations programs.



·
5. I do not employ or retain, and will not employ or retain, any current District <b>Responsible Employee</b> as a consultant, independent contractor or employee during the term of my consultancy agreement with the District.
6. I am authorized to make, and do make, this certification on behalf of
The foregoing certifications are true and correct. I make this certification under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California.
Signature of Consultant
Signature Date

# MASTER AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES BETWEEN

	A	RCHITECT		
		AN	D	
	EAST	SIDE UNION HIG	H SCHOOL DISTRICT	
			_, 20	
0	_	_	_	
Originals:	Architect	SGI Program Office	District	

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

	AMBLE	
	CITALS	
TER	MS AND CONDITIONS	1
SEC	TION 1: GENERAL PROVISIONS	1
1.1	DEFINITIONS	1
	TION 2: RETENTION OF ARCHITECT	
2.1	RETENTION	4
SEC	TION 3: DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT	1
3.1	DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT	
3.1	DESCRIPTION OF TROJECT	
SEC	TION 4: ARCHITECT'S BASIC SERVICE	4
4.1	GENERAL PROVISIONS	
4.2	SCHEMATIC DESIGN DOCUMENTS	
4.3	DESIGN DEVELOPMENT	
4.4	CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT PHASE	
4.5	BIDDING PHASE	
4.6	CONSTRUCTION PHASE	
4.7	AS-BUILT/RECORD DRAWINGS	
4.8	WARRANTY PHASE	
4.9	CERTIFICATION BY ARCHITECT	18
4.10	EXTRA SERVICES	
CEC	TION 5: ARCHITECT'S COMPENSATION & PAYMENT SCHEDULE	10
	COMPENSATIONCOMPENSATION & PAYMENT SCHEDULE	
5.1 5.2	COMPENSATION FOR EXTRA SERVICES	
5.3	COMPENSATION FOR EXTRA SERVICES	
5.4	COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES	
5.5	PAYMENT SCHEDULE	
5.5	THE WELL SCIED CEE	20
SEC	TION 6: INDEMNITY; ARCHITECT'S LIABILITY	24
6.1	INDEMNITY; ARCHITECT'S LIABILITY	24
SEC	TION 7: DUTIES & LIABILITIES OF DISTRICT	24
	DUTIES	
	LIABILITY OF DISTRICT	
SEC	TION 8: PROJECT CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATES	
8.1	ESTIMATE	27
SEC	TION 9: PROJECT SCHEDULE	20
	SCHEDULE	
7.I	DCHED CEE	

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS cont.**

SECTION 10: SUSPENSION OR ABANDONMENT OF PROJECT AND TERMINATION OF	
AGREEMENT	
10.1 SUSPENSION	29
SECTION 11: STANDARDIZED MANUFACTURED ITEMS	31
11.1 STANDARDS	31
SECTION 12: OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS PREPARED FOR THIS PROJECT	21
12.1 OWNERSHIP	
SECTION 13: REUSE OF DOCUMENTS PREPARED FOR THIS PROJECT	
13.1 DOCUMENTS	32
SECTION 14: INSURANCE	33
14.1 INSURANCE	
GEOGRANA A. D. VADANTERA	
SECTION 15: DISPUTES	
13.1 DISI OTES	
SECTION 16: NOTICES	
16.1 NOTICES	35
SECTION 17: SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNMENTS	36
17.1 SUCCESSORS	
SECTION 18: GOVERNING LAW	
10.1 LAW	30
SECTION 19: EMPLOYMENT STATUS	
19.1 EMPLOYMENT STATUS	37
SECTION 20: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	37
20.1 MISCELLANEOUS	
EXHIBIT "A" WORK AUTHORIZATION SAMPLE	A-1
EXHIBIT "B" DESIGN PHASE APPROVAL LETTER	B-1
Zamen z zelowinimezmino in Ebilek	<i>D</i> 1
EXHIBIT "C" RESPONSIBILITY MATRIX	C-1

#### MASTER AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES

	Vendor No.: Purchase Order No.:
	<b>PREAMBLE</b>
and betwee Union High	r Agreement for Architectural Services ("Agreement") is entered on, for work by m ("Architect"), whose address is and the East Side in School District, a California public school district ("District") whose address is 830 N. enue, San Jose, California 95133. Collectively the Architect and the District may be referred to
	RECITALS
<b>A.</b>	<b>District</b> proposes to undertake the construction of new facilities and/or improvement projects which require the services of a duly qualified and licensed architect.
В.	<b>Architect</b> is appropriately licensed to practice architecture in the State of California and is qualified to perform the services as required by this Agreement.
С.	The Parties intend that the Architect provide its services pursuant to this Agreement, which will enable the Project to be designed and constructed without burdening District or its campus staff.
	TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	<b>EREFORE</b> , in consideration of the promise and covenants herein and other valuable on receipt of which is acknowledged by the Parties it is mutually agreed as follows:
	SECTION 1
	GENERAL PROVISIONS
1.1 DEFIN	ITIONS
1.1.1	<b>Addendum:</b> "Addendum" shall mean written or graphic information (including, and without limitation, Drawings, or Specifications) prepared and issued prior to the date of receipt of bids, which modifies or interprets the Bidding Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, or corrections.

- **1.1.2 Additional Services:** "Additional Services" shall mean those services in addition to the Basic Services that are provided by the Architect and authorized in writing by the District and/or assigned District Consultant.
- **1.1.3 Agreed Design Cost Estimate:** "Agreed Design Cost Estimate" is an estimate of all work to be done as shown on the Schematic Design from the Design Development Phase.
- **1.1.4 Agreed Preliminary Estimate of Construction Costs**: "Agreed Preliminary Estimate of Construction Costs" shall consist of the Estimate of Construction Costs with revisions, if any, as indicated by the preliminary studies, schematic drawings, and site utilization plans.
- **1.1.5 Architect:** "Architect" shall mean the name of the architect listed in the first paragraph of this Agreement, including all Architect's Consultants.
- **1.1.6 Architect's Basic Services:** "Architect's Basic Services" shall consist of the design services, including landscape and irrigation design, architectural, civil, structural, mechanical, and electrical engineering services, as required to complete the Project.
- **1.1.7 Architect's Consultants:** "Architect's Consultants" shall mean persons properly skilled and licensed in various aspects of design and construction employed at Architect's sole expense.
- **1.1.8 As-Built Documents:** "As-Built Documents" shall mean the collection of documents assembled and prepared by the Contractor showing the condition of the Work as it was actually built.
- **1.1.9 As-Built/Record Drawings:** "As-Built/Record Drawings" shall mean the final set of drawings prepared by the Architect that incorporates all changes from all Record Drawings, sketches, details, and clarifications.
- **1.1.10 Bid:** "Bid" shall mean the written proposal submitted to District by a contractor in accordance with the Bidding Documents for the construction of the project.
- **1.1.11 Bid Set:** "Bid Set" shall mean the plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Construction Document Phase that DSA has approved and that the District can use to go out to bid for construction of the Project.
- **1.1.12 Bidder:** "Bidder" shall mean the person or entity submitting a Bid.
- **1.1.13 Budgeted Construction Cost:** "Budgeted Construction Cost" shall mean the District's estimated total cost for construction excluding the Architect's fee and excluding the cost of services and materials furnished by the District.

- 1.1.14 Contract Documents: "Contract Documents" shall mean those documents that are required for the actual construction of the Project, including but not limited to the agreement between the District and Contractor; complete working drawings and specifications setting forth in detail the work necessary for constructing the Project to be done and the materials, workmanship, finishes and equipment required for architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical systems and utility service-connected equipment and site work, including but not limited to the "Construction Documents" as used in this Agreement and in the *Work Authorization* (Exhibit "A").
- **1.1.15 Contractor:** "Contractor" shall mean the general contractor or specialty contractor ultimately selected to perform work on the Project or any replacement.
- 1.1.16 **District Consultant:** "District Consultant" shall mean the individual or company who Architect is notified by District has been tasked to manage the entire project including design, construction and post construction phases for the purpose of achieving project objectives including the management of quality, cost, time and scope and shall represent the District in these matters.
- 1.1.17 **District's Representative:** The District shall name a representative in writing who may be from District administration, facilities, or education services who shall represent it in all matters pertaining to the services to be rendered under this Agreement. The District's Representative shall cooperate with the Architect in all matters relative to this Agreement in order to permit the performance of the work without undue delay.
- **1.1.18 District:** "District" shall mean East Side Union High School District.
- **1.1.19 DSA:** "DSA" shall mean the Division of the State Architect.
- 1.1.20 Estimated Project Construction Cost: "Estimated Project Construction Cost" shall mean the estimate, including the "Major Categories of Work" of the projected construction cost representative of the documents and specifications prepared under the direction of the Architect with respect to each phase document development.
- **1.1.21 Inspector of Record:** "Inspector of Record" or "IOR" shall mean a certified Inspector and specialty inspector, approved by the Office of Regulation Services of the Division of State Architect for the Department of General Services of the State of California, to inspect work pursuant to the Field Act (California Education Code section 17280 *et seq.*) and applicable provisions of the California Code of Regulations. The IOR is tasked to act in an on-site capacity and to conduct field inspections of the project during construction.
- **1.1.22 Master Agreement for Architectural Services:** "Master Agreement for Architectural Services" consists of this document and all identified exhibits to it.
- **1.1.23 Principal(s):** "Principal(s)" shall mean individual(s) who are substantive participating owners of the architectural or engineering firm and are authorized to act on behalf of the

firm as signatories to the Agreement for this Project.

- **1.1.24 Project:** "Project" shall mean the work of improvement or new construction as described in the *Work Authorization*. (Exhibit "A")
- **1.1.25 Project Budget:** "Project Budget" shall mean the latest Estimated Project Construction Cost, including hard and soft cost as approved by the District at any applicable phase of design development.
- **1.1.26 Project Schedule:** "Project Schedule" shall mean the entire series of events necessary to design and construct the Project and encompasses the Architects, the Contractors and other Architect's Consultants' work.
- **1.1.27 Revised Agreed Cost Estimate:** "Revised Agreed Cost Estimate" includes an estimate of the cost of all work shown on the final working drawings and specifications from the Construction Document Phase.
- **1.1.28 Services:** "Services" shall mean all labor, materials, supervision, services, tasks, and work that the Architect is required to perform and that are required by, or reasonably inferred from, the Agreement, and that are necessary for the design and completion of the Project.

#### **SECTION 2**

#### RETENTION OF ARCHITECT

#### 2.1 RETENTION

2.1.1 The District retains the Architect to perform, and the Architect agrees to provide to and perform for the District, for consideration and upon the terms and conditions set forth below, architectural and engineering services specified in this Agreement and related incidental services. The Architect agrees to perform such services as expeditiously as possible and consistent with professional skill and care and the orderly progress of the Project. The Architect shall perform all services required under this Agreement in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by Architects professionally qualified to provide the services required by the District.

#### **SECTION 3**

#### **DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT**

#### 3.1 DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

3.1.1 The project concerning such architectural services shall be provided as required in the *Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")* ("Project")

#### **SECTION 4**

#### ARCHITECT'S BASIC SERVICE

#### 4.1 GENERAL PROVISIONS

- 4.1.1 The Architect shall perform the Services described in this Section, and as identified in the Work Authorization (Exhibit "A" hereto). Performance of these services is included in the basic fee payable by the District to the Architect. Services of the Architect shall include assisting in applying for and obtaining, when requested by the District and or District Consultant, all required approvals from appropriate authorities and agencies. The Architect shall be responsible for all submittals required by the Division of the State Architect ("DSA"), Office of Public School Construction ("OPSC"), and California Department of Education ("CDE") in connection therewith. The Architect shall prepare the Estimated Project Construction Cost; provide consulting and engineering services; provide responses to the District and/or assigned District Consultant; give direction and provide comments with respect to the Project.
- 4.1.2 The Architect shall participate in all required consultations and conferences with District, District Consultants or District Representative and/or other public agencies having jurisdiction over the Project.
- 4.1.3 The Architect shall supply the District with a copy of its work plan developed for its own internal project planning, tracking and coordination. The work plan shall indicate how the Architect plans to provide the scope of services and achieve the results described here, and any additional negotiated scope of work items. District receives the work plan for information only and has no responsibility for approving it.
- As a part of the basic services, the Architect shall employ at its sole expense consultants and personnel ("Architect's Consultants") properly skilled in the various aspects required for the design and construction of a Project. If the Architect's Consultants are engaged in engineering or other aspects of the work, the District shall be advised in writing of their selection prior to performing any work. The Architect's Consultants shall be employed to provide assistance during all aspects of the Project and will include, in addition to design services: review of schedules, shop drawings, samples, submittals, requests for information ("RFI"), requests for clarification ("RFC") attending regular site meetings (if required) and Project close-out. The Architect's Consultants shall also conduct periodic observations of the site to determine conformance to the Project design and specifications and shall participate in the final inspections and development of any "punch list items." The Architect's Consultants shall confer and cooperate with all education planners employed by the District within the scope of work covered by this Agreement.

- 4.1.5 The Architect and Architect's Consultants shall confer and cooperate with District Consultants. The use of District Consultants by District, in no way absolves the Architect's and/or Architect's Consultants' responsibility for providing the professional services as outlined in this Agreement.
- 4.1.6 Prior to the execution of this Agreement, the Architect shall submit for written approval to the District the names of consultant firms proposed for the Project and shall identify the key personnel of the consultant's firm. The District shall have the discretion to accept or reject any firm or person proposed. If a firm or person is rejected, the Architect shall propose an alternate firm or person that is acceptable to the District.
- 4.1.7 The Architect shall maintain an adequate staff including a Project manager, acceptable to the District. The Architect shall retain, at the expense of the Architect and subject to approval by the District, a California licensed architect, landscape architect, and engineers for the structural, electrical, mechanical, and civil portions including off-site improvements of the Project, this also includes any necessary specialty consultant(s) required for the execution of the Project.
- 4.1.8 The Architect shall attend meetings with the District and/or District Consultant regarding the Project, as defined in the *Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")*.
- 4.1.9 The Architect shall consult the District on all matters relative to this Agreement.
- 4.1.10 The Architect shall review existing District data, reports, plans, and other information regarding the site, and perform field investigations as necessary to become familiar with the site. To the extent necessary for Architect to perform its services, the Architect shall make an independent assessment of the accuracy of the information provided by the District concerning reasonably verifiable existing conditions (including but not limited to existing utilities and structures) and the adequacy of available design information/technical reports. The Architect shall rely on the results of its own independent investigations and not on information provided by District. The Architect shall conduct such further investigations of existing conditions as are necessary for Architect to perform the Services and shall advise District of any further design or other services necessary to complete the Project.
- 4.1.11 Upon request and at no additional cost to the District, the Architect shall revise the Construction Documents as requested by District to address any and all change orders and other necessary modifications which were caused by negligent acts, errors, or omissions of Architect or of Architect's Consultants.
- 4.1.12 The Architect and/or Architect's Consultants shall attend design progress meetings as well as any other design related conferences deemed necessary by District and/or District Consultant. Architect will record discussions in these meetings and provide a draft copy of the minutes to the District within (5) five working days. The District will review and

provide comments to the Architect (if necessary). The Architect shall then incorporate the District's review comments, sign, publish, and distribute the final minutes of the design progress meeting.

4.1.13 The Architect shall provide the District with a written monthly status report (MSR) with its monthly invoice. The MSR shall briefly: review project status, budget, and schedule, work performed and contract deliverables. It shall also describe any areas where performance varies from plan, any actual or anticipated problems and Architect's recommendations for preventative or corrective actions. If directed by the District, the Architect shall meet with District or District Representative monthly, or more often as needed, to discuss the MSR and to plan actions. The Architect shall prepare and submit to District, minutes of these meeting, summarizing agreed on decisions and action.

#### 4.1.14 Independent Reviews:

- .1 The Project is subject to independent reviews conducted by a District Consultant. The Architect shall cooperate with all such reviews by District Consultant.
- The Architect shall as a part of its Services, prepare written responses to written review comments and shall make changes to the Contract Documents in response to those comments. If the Architect does not deem that a comment requires a change, the Architect shall so state in a written response to the comment providing reasons why no such change shall be implemented. If the District nevertheless directs the Architect to implement the requested change, the Architect will do so, unless doing so would result in a violation of applicable federal or state laws. Should the Architect fail to implement changes as a result of independent review comments and/or as directed by the District, any financial cost for not doing so shall be borne by the Architect.
- .3 The District shall have the right, but not the obligation, to have an independent cost estimate(s) conducted by an estimator designated by the District or the District Consultant and at the expense of the District. The Architect shall as part of its Services be available to answer the estimator's questions regarding the design and attend meetings with the estimator to reconcile the Architect's and the independent estimator's estimate.

#### 4.2 CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT PHASE

**4.2.1 Construction Documents:** Upon receipt of a written authorization "phase letter" from the District to proceed, the Architect using approved Design Development Documents shall prepare working drawings, setting forth in detail and prescribing the work to be done, the materials, workmanship, and finishes required for the entire Project. The Construction Documents must include, as well as show, all existing and future utilities

"roughed-in" in their proper location, specifications, bid alternates, special conditions and any updated basis of design. Submittal requirements and deliverables are described in *Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")*.

- 4.2.2 The Construction Documents shall set forth in detail aspects of design, function and construction to be used for estimating the cost of the Project, securing bids for constructing the Project and directing the Contractor in the construction of the Project. Architect agrees that the plans and specifications and estimates of costs it produces shall be full, complete, and accurate, giving such directions that will enable any competent mechanic or builder to carry out.
- 4.2.3 The specifications and drawings approved by District and shall be in such form as will enable: (1) Architect to secure the required government agency approvals including, but not limited to, the DSA (structural safety, fire safety, and handicapped accessibility), the CDE, and local planning agencies; (2) District to secure required approvals and permits for construction of the Project; and, (3) District to obtain by competitive bidding a responsible bid that does not exceed the Revised Agreed Cost Estimate.
- **4.2.4** Bid alternates shall be developed as an integral part of the Construction Documents from the start of the Construction Document Phase. Bid alternates may include:
  - Integrated school logos
  - Custom colors for tracks
  - Replacement of goal posts and other fixtures
  - Site fencing at track level
- **4.2.5** At 90% Construction Document Phase the Architect shall perform a constructability review.
- 4.2.6 If so directed by District at the time of approval of the Design Development Documents, final working drawings and specifications shall be prepared so that portions of the work may be performed under separate contracts or so that the construction of certain buildings, structures, facilities, or other parts of the Project may be deferred.
- **4.2.7** As a part of the **90%** Construction Document submittal, the Architect shall furnish the following:
  - .1 Three (3) copies: Construction Document plans and specifications
  - .2 A PDF copy: Updated cost estimate entitled: *Estimated Project Construction Cost at 90% Construction Document Phase.*
- **4.2.8** The following shall be provided and variously distributed for code and constructability reviews as directed by the District, and or District Consultant:

- .1 Three (3) copies: Construction Documents (drawings and specifications)
- **4.2.9** As a part of the **100%** Construction Document submittal, the Architect shall furnish the following:
  - .1 Three (3) copies: Updated Construction Document (drawings and specifications)
  - .2 Two (2) copies: Electronic files of Construction Drawing plans and specifications on CD-ROM or Thumb Drive
  - .3 One Copy in Electronic PDF Format: Updated cost estimate entitled: *Estimated Project Construction Cost at 90% Construction Document Phase.*

#### 4.3 BIDDING PHASE

- **4.3.1 Bidding**: Upon the District's approval the Architect shall assemble the Contract Documents for bidding.
- 4.3.2 The Architect shall furnish all Services required to enable the District to receive bids for a Project which includes: instructions to bidders, advertisement for bids, Construction Documents, general and supplementary conditions, bonds, bid proposals, and bid tabulation forms, and assistance in the pre-bid conference.
- 4.3.3 The Architect shall prepare addenda and clarification documents, interpret Contract Documents for bidders, provide an evaluation of equals and assist the District, as requested, in responding to architectural and engineering questions asked during the bidding phase.
- 4.3.4 The Architect shall provide working drawings and specifications which include alternate bids as deemed advisable by District to bring the Project within the Budgeted Construction Cost.
- 4.3.5 If, after receipt of competitive bids based on Construction Documents, the lowest acceptable bid or the total of all bids exceeds the Budgeted Construction Cost at the time of the bid opening by more than ten percent (10%), the District may, at its discretion, (i) give written approval of an increase in the Budgeted Construction Cost (no additional fees will be due to the Architect from such increase made at this time), or (ii) authorize re-bidding the Project within a reasonable time, or (iii) direct the Architect to revise the Construction Documents without additional charge as necessary to bring the revised Estimated Project Construction Cost/Construction Document Phase with the Budgeted Construction Cost.
- **4.3.6** The Architect shall furnish the District with a written evaluation of the bids.

#### 4.4 CONSTRUCTION PHASE

- 4.4.1 Construction Administration of the Construction Contract: The Construction Phase shall commence with the award of the contract for construction and shall end when the Board of Trustees accepts the Project and files a notice of completion ("Notice of Completion"); provided that such acceptance and Notice of Completion shall not constitute an admission by the District that the Project has been completed in accordance with the Contract Documents or in conformance with this Agreement. During the construction phase, the Architect shall perform the services set forth below.
- The Architect shall provide general construction administration services of the Contract Documents for all work based on the Bid Set, prepared by the Architect. The Architect shall visit the Project to review the work at times he or she deems necessary to determine the general quality of the Contractor's performance as the work progresses, and shall visit the Project promptly as requested to do so by the District and/or District Consultant. Construction administration by the Architect shall be in addition to the continuous inspection of the Project Inspector.
- 4.4.3 Before commencing with the work herein, the Architect shall provide the name of its Project Manager or Contract Administrator if different than the previously indicated Project Manager. Neither the Project Manager nor Contract Administrator shall be removed or reassigned without prior written approval of the District, and/or District Consultant, unless the Project Manager or Contract Administrator proves unsatisfactory to the District, or District Consultant, in which case written notification will be sent to the Architect.
- 4.4.4 The Architect shall endeavor to secure compliance by the Contractor and the subcontractors with the Contract Document requirements, but the Architect does not guarantee performance of their Contract Documents.
- 4.4.5 The Architect shall advise and consult the District Consultant, in all matters identified in the Contract Documents, and shall quickly relay all instructions to the Contractor relative to the construction of the Project. The Architect shall provide technical advice to the District, its Consultant and the Project Inspector.
- 4.4.6 The Architect shall provide follow-up to the Contractor's RFI within ten (10) calendar days of submission; a copy of all such communications shall be provided to District and District's Consultant. All submittal submission follow-up are as per the District's front end documents, with which Architect shall review and become familiar to carry out its responsibilities and obligations hereunder. In the event of errors and omissions in the Contract Documents the Architect shall promptly prepare revised documents to correct the error or address the omission.
- 4.4.7 The Architect and/or Architect's Consultants shall provide technical direction to the Project Inspector and shall be available on site to the Contractor and subcontractors as

reasonably required to provide interpretation of the Contract Documents.

- **4.4.8** The Architect shall cooperate with the District and District Consultant during the Construction Phase of the Project.
- **4.4.9** The Architect shall receive and regularly and timely review the Project Inspector's reports.
- 4.4.10 The Architect will attempt to expedite the progress of the construction work by means of written communication and reference to agreed and accepted schedules. The District understands, however, that Architect is not responsible for Project delays caused by Contractors or its subcontractors.
- **4.4.11** The Architect and Architect's Consultants shall submit verified progress reports, as required, to the District via the District Consultant.
- 4.4.12 The Architect shall make written reports to the District and to the District Consultant stating any problems arising during construction, and the changes contemplated in the work as a result of the problem, and the progress of the work.
- 4.4.13 The Architect shall check and process all required material and test reports and report to the Contractor, the District and to the District Consultant any deficiencies in material as reflected by those reports, and recommendations for correction of those deficiencies.
- 4.4.14 In cooperation with the District, the Architect shall prepare and submit to the District and to the District Consultant or to the District Representative for review and approval or disapproval, selections of colors, textures, finishes, and other matters involving an aesthetic decision, for all required items included in the Project.
- 4.4.15 The Architect shall review shop drawings, materials lists, and equipment lists for conformance with Contract Documents, reject those which do not comply, or indicate no exception to those which do comply. No major changes in or deviations from the requirements of the Contract Documents will be permitted at any time without prior written approval from the District. The Architect shall return all reviewed shop drawings to the District Consultant and shall advise the District Consultant of the result of the review.
- 4.4.16 The Architect shall investigate and recommend for acceptance or rejection any substitution of materials and products where requested or required by the terms of the specifications and shall record all substitutions of items in the final as-built specifications provided for in paragraph 4.7.1 of this Section.
- 4.4.17 The Architect shall discuss with the Contractor, the District and the District Consultant any proposed changes required during construction, when the changes alter the function, quality, appearance, or cost of the finished item of work. The Architect shall check all

items of cost caused by such changes. The Architect shall not permit the Contractor to commence work on any changes without first obtaining the written approval of the District.

- 4.4.18 The Architect shall consult with the Project Inspector and/or the Contractor in the compilation of information necessary for the preparation of the As-Built/Record Drawings required by paragraph 4.7.1 of this Section.
- **4.4.19** The Architect shall furnish as many prints, specifications, other necessary documents, and prepare reports to any government entities having jurisdiction as required.
- **4.4.20** The Architect shall review the Contractor's monthly request for payment, and when satisfied as to the amount due, sign the submitted pay request.
- 4.4.21 The Architect shall furnish all details or incidental services necessary for the proper execution of the work, to include all supplemental drawings required to describe the work. The Architect shall complete these details and deliver them to the Contractor to prevent delay to the Contractor's operations. Tracings of all supplemental drawings shall be furnished to District Consultant and shall bear the approvals required, if any, by public agencies having jurisdiction if, during the construction, any dispute arises regarding the meaning of the drawings and/or specifications, the Architect shall render a prompt interpretation.
- In cooperation with the District, the District Consultant and the District Representative, the Architect shall make a pre-final review at such time as the Project is substantially completed. On the basis of the pre-final review, the Architect, in cooperation with the District Consultant, shall prepare and forward to the Contractor and to District a list of all deficiencies, including a list of those of a minor nature, commonly called a "Punch list," and notify the Contractor in a written notice accompanying the list that all of the deficiencies must be corrected prior to acceptance of the Project.
- 4.4.23 In conjunction with the District, the District Consultant and the Contractor, the Architect shall make a final reviews and, when satisfied, inform the District and the District Consultant, upon completion of the Project and prior to payment of 90 percent (90%) of the contract amount to the Contractor that, based on his own personal knowledge all provisions of the Contract Documents and specifications have been complied with and no changes in the work have been made except as authorized in writing by the District.
- During the period of construction, the Architect shall cause consulting engineers to make or cause to be made all reviews necessary to secure the completion of the Project. Upon completion of the Project, the Architect shall cause each consulting engineer to issue or cause to be issued a letter stating that the work falling under his/her administration has been performed in accordance with drawings and specifications and contract requirements. All letters are to be forwarded to the District and to the District Consultant for Project archiving.

- 4.4.25 The Architect shall perform within professional standards to secure compliance by the Contractor with the Contract Document requirements, but is not responsible for the acts or omissions of the Contractor or any subcontractors, or Contractor's agents or employees, or persons performing work on the Project that are not due to the Architect's negligence.
- 4.4.26 The Architect, as well as the District, shall have authority to reject work which does not conform to the Contract Documents. The Architect shall promptly inform the District whenever, in the Architect's opinion, it may be necessary to take action to avoid the improper performance of the Contract Document.

#### **4.4.27** The Architect shall:

- .1 Attend the Project pre-construction meeting
- .2 Attend all regularly scheduled construction meetings
- .3 Review and provide comment if any, of the meeting minutes prepared by the District Consultant
- .4 Prepare all documentation for the final change order (with back-up) for written approval by the Board of Trustees
- The Architect shall not issue orders to the Contractor that might commit the Board of Trustees to extra expenses, or otherwise amend the Contract Documents, without first obtaining the written approval of the District.
- **4.4.29** Upon completion of construction work, the Architect shall be responsible for accomplishment of the following tasks:
  - .1 The Architect shall secure in proper form and transmit to District and to the District Consultant all guarantees, instruction books, diagrams, operation manuals, and changes required of the Contractor. The Architect's mechanical engineering consultants shall review the operation and maintenance manual on all mechanical systems, to be provided by the Contractor for completeness and shall submit said manuals to the District Consultant not less than sixty (60) days prior to the scheduled date for beneficial occupancy.
  - .2 The Architect shall review all construction change orders with the District and its District Consultant to obtain approval.
  - .3 The Architect shall prepare the documentation for the final construction change order to be approved by the Board of Trustees.

.4 The Architect shall submit all other required close-out documentation to any agency having jurisdiction over the Project.

#### 4.5 AS-BUILT/RECORD DRAWINGS

#### 4.5.1 As-Built Drawings and Record Document Phase:

Upon the filing of the Notice of Completion, and no later than thirty (30) days after completion of construction, and before the receipt of final payment, the Architect shall obtain the completed record set of field-marked documents from the Contractor. Architect shall be responsible for appending markings and attachments from the Contactor's record set, including delineations of RFI responses and change order drawings into the Architect's CAD drawings. Each drawing sheet shall be prominently entitled "As-Built/Record Drawings" and dated.

- Once reviewed by the District, the District Representative or the District Consultant, the Architect shall forward to the District Consultant the complete set of original drawings corrected to As-Built/Record Drawings condition or a complete set of reproducible duplicate drawings. The drawings shall be of such quality that clear and legible prints may be made without appreciable and objectionable loss of detail.
- .2 Prior to the receipt of his final payment, Architect shall forward to the District and to the District Consultant, one (1) clear and legible set of reproductions of the computations, the original copy of the specifications, the As-Built/Record Drawings, the final verified progress report pursuant to Title 21 of the California Code of Regulations, and the Architect's Certificate of Completion.
- **4.5.2** Upon approval of the District, the Architect shall furnish the District with the following:
  - .1 Two (2) copies: As-Built/Record Drawings (prints)
  - .2 Two (2) copies: Electronic files of Construction Documents on CD-ROM

#### 4.6 WARRANTY PHASE

- **4.6.1 Warranty Observation Phase:** During all one-year periods of guarantee of the work provided for in the contracts with the Contractor(s), the Architect shall act as District's advisor for the purpose of securing correction of any and all defects and deficiencies covered by guarantees. Architect shall assist District by providing interpretation of the drawings and specifications where requested.
- Eleven (11) months following substantial completion and prior to the expiration of any guarantees, Architect and Architect's Consultants shall visit the Project with District and:

- .1 Review all work and identify observable defects and deficiencies;
- .2 Evaluate the performance, durability, and appearance of installed products, materials, and systems as they relate to suitability for the use intended and to District's construction budget; and
- .3 Submit a written report to District concerning the foregoing.

#### 4.7 CERTIFICATION BY ARCHITECT

Architect certifies that the Architect is properly licensed under the laws and regulations of the State of California to provide the professional Services that it has herein agreed to perform.

Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of the California Labor Code that require every employer to be insured against liability for workers compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and it certifies that it will comply with those provisions before commencing the performance of the services of this Agreement.

Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of California Labor Code that require the payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on certain "public works" and "maintenance" projects ("Prevailing Wage Laws"). Since the Architect is performing services as part of an applicable "public works" or "maintenance" project, and since the total compensation is One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000) or more, the Architect agrees to fully comply with and to require its consultant(s) to fully comply with all applicable prevailing wage requirements of the California Labor Code.

#### 4.8 EXTRA SERVICES

- **4.8.1 Architect Extra Services:** Extra services require pre-authorization in writing by the District. When extra services are authorized they shall be provided by the Architect and shall be paid by the District as provided in Section 5.2, Compensation for Extra Services.
- **4.8.2** The following services are not covered by Section 4.1 Architect's Basic Services, of this Agreement and are to be considered Extra Services:
  - .1 Revisions and changes to approved documents and the preparation of alternative or deductive change orders requested by District which are not for the purpose of reducing the cost to within ten percent of the Revised Agreed Cost Estimate as provided in Section 8.1.4.
  - .2 Services for repairs of damages to the Project unless caused, in whole or in part, by Architect's negligence or intentional acts.

- .3 The selection by Architect, at the District's request, of movable furniture, equipment, or articles which are not included in the Contract Document(s).
- .4 Additional services caused by the delinquency or insolvency of the Contractor.
- .5 Preparing measured drawings of existing structures if authorized by the District.
- .6 When directed by District in writing, (i) the employment of special consultants, (ii) the preparation of special delineations and models, and (iii) overtime work by Architect's employees.
- **4.8.3** For the purpose of computing the Architect's final compensation:

#### .1 Change Orders:

The fee shall not be decreased because of change orders which provide for a decrease in the construction contract price and which are not the results of an omission, conflicts, or other discrepancies in the contract drawings or specifications, except for those deductive change orders required under Section 4.5.5.

#### .2 Omissions:

The fee shall not be increased because of change orders which provide for an increase in construction contract price which are the result of errors, omissions, conflicts, or other discrepancies in the Construction Documents or specifications adjudged by District to be the fault of Architect.

#### **SECTION 5**

#### ARCHITECT'S COMPENSATION & PAYMENT SCHEDULE

#### 5.1 COMPENSATION

- 5.1.1 The District shall compensate the Architect Dollars

  (\$ property of the Architect Pollars)

  (\$ pollars)
- **5.1.3** For Construction Document services performed as described in Section 4.4, fee shall be paid as follows:

#### .1 Construction Document Phase:

Forty-five percent (45%) of the Basic Fee based upon the District's notice to proceed with Construction Documents, unless otherwise indicated in the <u>Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")</u>. Interim payments during the Construction

Document Phase may be paid at the District's discretion upon District approval of evidence of service rendered, that 50% Construction Documents completed, 90% Construction Documents completed, and 100% Construction Documents completed. Approval letter from District (or its designated representative) and a signed and completed Design Development Phase Deliverables checklist (see *Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")*) signed by Architect showing all deliverables have been completed must be attached to the final invoice at 100% Construction Documents Phase completion. *See Phase Approval Letter (Exhibit "B")*.

#### .2 Bidding Phase:

Upon the District's award of the Construction Contract, five percent (5%) of the Basic Fee based upon the District's notice to proceed, unless otherwise indicated in the *Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")*.

#### .3 Construction Administration Phase:

Forty-five percent (45%) of the Basic Fee based upon the Architect's approved proposal, unless otherwise indicated in the <u>Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")</u>. Fees to be paid in monthly installments, in proportion to the certified completion of construction, rounded to the nearest whole percent, as determined by the District.

#### .4 As-Built/Record Drawing Phase:

Following the submittal of District approved As-Built/Record Drawings and Specifications, the Architect must submit all required project closeout documentation. Five percent (5%) of the Basis Fee shall be paid upon Architect's submission to District (or District's designated representative) of satisfactory evidence that Architect has submitted all required documentation for Project closeout.

#### 5.2 COMPENSATION FOR EXTRA SERVICES

- Payment for Architect's extra services, as described in Section 4.10, shall be authorized and determined in the following manner:
  - .1 At its discretion, the District may elect to negotiate a fixed fee for extra services; or
  - .2 For work performed by Principals and employees of the Architect, the Architect shall receive an amount not to exceed established hourly rates (as indicated in the *Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")*, for actual time expended to provide the authorized extra services. The Architect shall provide a rate sheet at the onset of the project listing rates applicable to this Project within the limits listed above or,
  - .3 For work performed by firms or individuals not employees of the Architect (and which Architect is not qualified to perform), but engaged by the Architect to

assist in providing the authorized extra service, the Architect shall receive one and one tenth (1.10) times the amount to be paid by the Architect to the consultants for said services.

#### 5.3 COMPENSATION FOR REIMBURSABLE SERVICES

- 5.3.1 The District will reimburse Architect for certain project related expenditures only upon certification and reasonable proof that the expenses were actually incurred or the services satisfactorily completed after authorization. The District will not be obligated to pay for any service performed by Architect without prior written authorization by District, the District Representative or the District Consultant. Claims for reimbursable expenses shall reflect actual expenditures made by the Architect, employees, or Architect's Consultants working on the Project and be documented by appropriate billing and supporting receipts. Compensation for reimbursable services shall be limited to actual expenses.
  - .1 Travel and Mileage: Trips from the Architect's office to the District Project site or to the District office are not reimbursable. Lodging and food are also not reimbursable.
  - When pre-authorized by the District, other travel expenses in connection with the Project shall be reimbursable. Travel reimbursement shall be limited to the amount that would be authorized by the District.
  - .3 Reprographic Services during Design: Reproduction of drawings, specifications, calculations, cost estimates, program analysis, photos, rendering, plots or similar reproductive instrument required as described in Schematic Phase, Design Develop Phase, Construction Document Phase shall be provided as a part of the work and are reimbursable.
  - Additional print sets requested by the District beyond the quantities listed are reimbursable. Reproduction for internal use by the Architect and Architect's Consultants are not reimbursable.
  - .5 **Postage and Communication:** Postage, package deliveries (UPS or similar carriers) and courier services are reimbursable. Both local and long distance telephone calls (i.e., outside the 408, 510, 415, 650, 707, and 916 area codes) are not reimbursable.
  - **Reprographics for Plan Check Review:** Reproduction of documents for submittals to review agencies (DSA, plan checking firm, State Fire Marshal, etc.) is required as a part of basic services and are not reimbursable.
- .7 Reproductions during Construction: Reproduction and express delivery and, clarifications to Contractor's inquiries, and similar actions to facilitate timely responses during the construction phase shall not be reimbursable

#### 5.4 COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES

Architect warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration contingent on or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the District shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without liability, or in its discretion, to deduct from the contract price or consideration or otherwise recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage fee, gift, or contingency.

#### 5.5 PAYMENT SCHEDULE

Payment under this Agreement shall be made in arrears of the completion of work, upon submittal of an accurate invoice, a sample of which shall be provided to the District prior to commencing any services, as follows:

#### .1 Construction Development Services:

Payment to the Architect, after review and approval by the District and any other approving agency, for each phase of Construction Development Services shall be made upon presentation of an invoice for the percentage of the fee due. The payment shall be made in accordance with the Schedule of fees for the Architect's Basic Services.

- During the construction period, payment of the Basic Fee shall be monthly in proportion to the certified percentage of construction completion as provided in Section 5.1.3.3 (Compensation, Construction Administration Phase), with final payment following receipt of approved record drawings, Section 5.1.3.4 (Compensation, Record Drawing Phase).
- 23 Payments for Architect extra services, (Section 5.2), and for Reimbursable Expenses, (Section 5.3), if any, shall be made monthly, unless otherwise specified within the respective extra service authorization, upon presentation of the Architect's invoice and approval by the District.
- .4 No deductions shall be made from the Architect's compensation on account of penalty, liquidated damages, or other sums withheld from payments to Contractors, provided the reason for such withholding is not attributable to the fault of the Architect.
- .5 At the conclusion of work on the Project the Architect shall prepare a final invoice for the remaining amount (if any) due. This invoice shall be prominently noted *FINAL INVOICE*. The Architect shall provide a final invoice within thirty

(30) days of District's request. Upon receipt and approval of final invoice, the District shall pay within 35 days.

#### **SECTION 6**

#### INDEMNITY; ARCHITECT'S LIABILITY

#### 6.1 INDEMNITY; ARCHITECT'S LIABILITY

- 6.1.1 To the furthest extent permitted by California law, Architect shall defend, indemnify, and hold free and harmless the District, its agents, representatives, officers, consultants, employees, trustees, and volunteers ("the indemnified parties") from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage or injury of any kind, in law or in equity ("Claim"), to property or persons, including personal injury and/or death, that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, errors or omissions, or willful misconduct of Architect, its officials, officers, employees, subcontractors, consultants, or agents directly or indirectly arising out of, connected with, or resulting from the performances of the Services, the Project, or this Agreement, including without limitation the payment of all consequential damages.
- Architect shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award or decree that may be rendered against the indemnified parties in any Claim. Architect shall also reimburse District for the cost of any settlement paid by District arising out of any Claim. Architect shall reimburse the indemnified parties for any and all legal expenses and costs, including expert witness fees and consultant fees, incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in enforcing the indemnity herein provided to the extent caused by the above agreement to indemnify. Architect's obligation to indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the indemnified parties, or to the amount of insurance obtained or available under Section 14 herein. District shall have the right to accept or reject any legal representation that Architect proposes to defend the indemnified parties.

#### **SECTION 7**

#### **DUTIES AND LIABILITIES OF DISTRICT**

#### 7.1 DUTIES

- 7.1.1 Resources to be supplied by the District: The following resources, surveys, and reports shall be made available to the Architect as required, at the District's expense.
- **7.1.2 District's Representative:** The District shall name a District's Representative who shall represent it in all matters pertaining to the services to be rendered under this Agreement. The District's Representative shall cooperate with the Architect in all matters relative to

this Agreement in order to permit the performance of the work without undue delay.

**7.1.3 Statement of Building Program:** The District shall provide full information as to the requirements for and the education program to be conducted in the Project, including budget limitations and scheduling.

#### 7.1.4 Surveys and Tests:

- .1 Site Survey: The Architect shall furnish a legal description and a certified land survey and any surveys and evaluations necessary of the site, to facilitate a complete and accurate design.
- **Reliance:** The services, information, surveys and reports required by this section shall be furnished at District's expense. Architect shall be entitled to rely upon their accuracy and completeness, except that Architect must question in writing to District any information which appears incomplete or incorrect based upon Architect's experience, site observations and knowledge of the Project.
- .4 Checking and Permit Fees: The District shall pay or cause to be paid all fees required in connection with the Project to government agencies having jurisdiction.
- **Legal, Accounting:** The District shall furnish its own legal, accounting, insurance and auditing services, as District may desire.
- .6 Notice of Defects: If the District observes or otherwise becomes aware of any fault or defect in the Project, or nonconformance with the Contract Documents, District shall verbally or in writing advise the Architect. However, District's failure to give such notice shall not eliminate the obligations of Architect regarding the administration of the construction of the Project or other obligations under the Contract Documents; nor require the District to make inspections.
- .7 **Advertising:** The District shall pay the cost of any advertisements for bids that may be required by District.
- .8 Project Inspector: The District shall furnish and provide an inspector, or inspectors, as required during the entire course of construction of the Project. Each inspector shall responsible to and under the direction of Architect and shall also be responsible to and act in accordance with the policies of, District. The cost of employment of such inspector will be borne by the District and paid directly to the inspector.
- .9 **District Staff Inspections:** Requests for changes or substitutions shall be directed to the District Representative. Orders to the Contractor shall be issued

- through Architect, District Representative, and/or District Consultant.
- .10 **Pre-Final Review:** At the discretion of the District, the District may assist the Architect in making the pre-final reviews and in preparation of the list of deficiencies which is required by Section 4.6.22.
- .11 Final Inspection: At the discretion of the District, when notified by the Architect that the "punch list" items have been corrected, the District may accompany the Architect and the Contractor on the final inspection.
- .12 Notice of Completion: When all items are completed to the satisfaction of the District and the Architect, and upon recommendation of Architect, District staff shall recommend that the District's Board of Trustees adopt Notice of Completion.

#### 7.2 LIABILITY OF DISTRICT

- 7.2.1 Other than as provided in this Agreement, District's financial obligations under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation provided in this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event shall District be liable, regardless of whether any claim is based on contract or tort, for any special, consequential, indirect or incidental damages, including, but not limited to, lost profits or revenue, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement for the Services performed in connection with this Agreement.
- 7.2.2. District shall not be responsible for any damage to persons or property as a result of the use, misuse or failure of any equipment used by Architect, or by its employees, even though such equipment be furnished or loaned to Architect by District.

#### **SECTION 8**

#### PROJECT CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATES

#### 8.1 ESTIMATES

- **8.1.1 Budgeted Construction Cost**: The Budgeted Construction Cost of this Project is referenced in the *Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")* and represents the District's estimated total cost for construction. The Budgeted Construction Cost excludes the Architect's fee and the cost of services and materials furnished by the District including but not limited to soil tests, inspections, material tests, permits and checking fees, advertising, and equipment. This figure is for information purposes only as a reasonable guide to establishing the preliminary estimates in Sections 8.1.2, 8.1.3 and 8.1.4 below:
- **8.1.2 Agreed Preliminary Estimate of Construction Costs**: The Agreed Preliminary

Estimate of Construction Costs shall be subject to District approval and shall consist of the Estimate of Construction Cost with revisions, if any, as indicated by the preliminary studies, schematic drawings, and site utilization plans completed pursuant to Section 4.2.

- **8.1.3 Agreed Design Cost Estimate:** The Agreed Design Cost Estimate shall include an estimate of all work to be done as shown on the Schematic Design from the Design Development Phase, as completed pursuant to Section 4.3, and shall be established by agreement of the Parties.
- 8.1.4 Revised Agreed Cost Estimate: The Revised Agreed Cost Estimate shall include an estimate of the cost of all work shown on the final working drawings and specifications from the Construction Document Phase, as completed pursuant to Section 4.4, and shall be established by agreement of the Parties. It shall be based upon prevailing construction and market conditions for the purpose, among others, of ascertaining that the cost of the proposed construction falls within the limitations established by District. Until the actual cost of the Project or unit of work is determined by receipt by District of competitive bids based upon the working drawings and specifications, the Revised Agreed Cost Estimate shall be the agreed construction cost of the Project.

#### **SECTION 9**

#### PROJECT SCHEDULE

#### 9.1 SCHEDULE

- 9.1.1 Time for Completion: Time is of the essence and failure of Architect to perform services on time as specified in this Agreement is a material breach of this Agreement. It shall not be a material breach if a delay is beyond the Architect's and/or Architect's Consultant(s)' reasonable control. The completion times set forth below are binding, unless extended in writing by District or the District Representative.
- **9.1.2 Construction Documents:** All obligations set forth in Section 4.4 shall be completed within sixty (60) calendar days after the date on which District approves the documents described in the *Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")*.
- **9.1.3 Delays:** Except as otherwise provided in Section 5.2, any time during which Architect is delayed by acts of negligence of District or its employees or those in a direct contractual relationship with District or by Force Majeure which delays were not or could not have been reasonably foreseen and provided for, and which are not due to any fault or negligence on the part of the Architect, is included in the amount of Architect compensation in Section 5.1 District shall not be liable for the damages to the Architect on account of such delays.
- **9.1.4 Notice of Delay:** The Architect shall, immediately upon ascertainment, notify the

District of any delay in: (i) the preparation and/or production of any of Architect's documents hereunder, (ii) Architect's services, or (iii) connection with any matter attended to by the Architect or with which Architect is familiar (whether or not as the result of an act or omission of another) which would affect or delay the Project or the Project Schedule. Architect shall consult and advise the District in connection with any such delay in its effect on the Project Schedule and shall take such action on District's behalf as District may request in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

9.1.5 Specific Response Time: The District may, in its sole discretion, establish a reasonable response time standard for Architect's performance of services: e.g., review and approval of shop drawings, preparation of change orders and field orders, interpretation of Contract Documents, or review of requests to substitute materials. These specific response times shall be considered to be reasonable and Architect will not exceed them unless, at the time of the action which necessitates a response, Architect indicates that a longer response time is necessary and gives a written explanation of the reasons why an extended response time will be needed. Any extension of the response time must be approved by District. Insufficiency of personnel shall not be an adequate excuse for delay by Architect or Architect's Consultants.

#### **SECTION 10**

## SUSPENSION OR ABANDONMENT OF PROJECT AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

#### 10.1 SUSPENSION

- 10.1.1 Limitations of Agreement: This Agreement is limited to and includes only the work included in the Project described in the attached *Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")* and as determined at the time the schematic drawings and site utilization plans are approved. Any subsequent construction at the site of this Project or at any other site in the District will be covered by and be the subject of a separate *Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")* for architectural services by and between District and the Architect chosen therefore by District.
- 10.1.2 Termination of Architect's Services: The District may suspend or may terminate Architect's services under this Agreement by written notice to Architect because of failure of Architect to perform or to complete services within the time limits established in Section 4 and Section 9, or otherwise to comply with the terms of this Agreement or for any other reason deemed sufficient by District in its absolute discretion, including termination for convenience. Upon termination, Architect shall deliver to District all preliminary studies, sketches, working drawings, specifications, computations, and all other matters to which District would have been entitled at the completion of Architect's services.

- Abandonment of a Portion of Project: The District has the absolute discretion to suspend or abandon all or any portion of the Project contemplated under this Agreement, and may do so upon written notice to the Architect. That abandonment or suspension shall not void or invalidate this Agreement, and the payment provisions under Section 10.1.4, shall be used to determine Architect's compensation. If the entire Project is abandoned, the parties shall be relieved of the remaining executory obligations of the Agreement, but shall not be relieved of any obligations arising prior to said abandonment. Upon receipt of notice of abandonment of the entire project, Architect shall deliver to the District the documents and other matters described in Section 9.1.2.
- 10.1.4 Compensation Due: In the event of termination by District of the Architect's services, or suspension or abandonment of this Project, there shall be due and payable within thirty (30) days after delivery of the documents described in *Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")*, a sum of money equal to the amounts described in 10.1.5, 10.1.6 and 10.1.7 of this Section, as applicable, less compensation to District for damages suffered by District as a result of the Architect's failure, if any, to comply with the terms of this Agreement.
- **Additional Services:** In addition to the payment described above, Architect shall be paid the amount due for any extra services authorized pursuant to Section 4.10.
- **Resumed Projects:** If the Project is suspended in whole or in part for more than four (4) months and if the Project is resumed, the schedule shall be adjusted and the Architect's compensation shall be equitably adjusted to provide for expenses incurred in the resumption of the Architect's services.
- **10.1.7 Design Transfer Agreement:** The District may transfer Design Services to another Architect under this Agreement by written notice to the Architect, and without additional cost or compensation to the District.

# STANDARDIZED MANUFACTURED ITEMS

# 11.1 STANDARDS

11.1.1 Architect shall consult and cooperate with District's staff in the use and selection of manufactured items to be used in the Project. Manufactured items, including, but not limited to, paint, finish hardware, plumbing fixtures and equipment, roofing materials, and floor covering shall be standardized to District's criteria so long as those criteria do not seriously interfere with building design and/or governing codes.

# OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS PREPARED FOR THIS PROJECT

## 12.1 OWNERSHIP

**12.1.1 License.** Pursuant to Education Code section 17316, this Agreement creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for the District to use, at its discretion, all plans, specifications, original, or reproducible transparencies of working drawings and master plans, preliminary sketches, architectural presentation drawings, structural computations, all estimates and all other documents prepared by Architect pursuant to this Agreement.

The Architect retains all rights to all copyrights, designs and other intellectual property embodied in the plans, record drawings, specifications, estimates, and other documents that the Architect or Architect's Consultants prepares or causes to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement.

The Architect shall perform the Services and prepare all documents under this Agreement with the assistance of Computer Aided Design Drafting (CADD) (e.g., AutoCAD) Technology. The Architect shall deliver to the District, on request, compact disc format and the name of the supplier of the software/hardware necessary to use the design file. As to any drawings that Architect provides in a CADD file format, the District acknowledges that anomalies and errors may be introduced into data when it is transferred or used in a computer environment, and that the District should rely on hard copies of all documents.

In order to document exactly what CADD information was given to the District, Architect and District shall each sign a "hard" copy of reproducible documents that depict the information at the time Architect produces the CADD information. District agrees to release Architect from all liability, damages, and/or claims that arise due to any changes made to this information by anyone other than the Architect or Architect's Consultant(s) subsequent to it being given to the District.

**Termination:** Following the termination of Architect's services, for any reason, or abandonment of all or a portion of the Project, District may utilize the completed drawings, specifications, estimates, and other completed construction documents prepared under this Agreement by Architect as it sees fit. Architect shall deliver to District the following documents upon the District's written request:

One set of the Contract Documents, including the bidding requirements, specifications, and all existing cost estimates for the Project, in hard copy, reproducible format.

One set of fixed image CADD files in DXF format or any other District specified format of the drawings that are part of the Contract Documents.

One set of non-fixed image CADD drawing files in DXF and/or DWG format of the site plan, floor plans (architectural, plumbing, structural mechanical and electrical), roof plan, sections and exterior elevations of the Project.

All finished or unfinished documents, studies, reports, calculations, drawings, maps, models, photographs, technology data and reports prepared by the Architect under this Agreement.

- 12.1.3 After completion of the Project, Architect shall not permit reproductions to be made of any District owned documents without the approval of District and shall refer all requests by other persons to District.
- 12.1.4 The Architect shall not use the drawings or plans produced for District on any other project without District's prior written consent. Architect shall defend and indemnify District from any claim that such documents infringe the copyright or trade secrets of another.

# **SECTION 13**

# REUSE OF DOCUMENTS PREPARED FOR THIS PROJECT

#### 13.1 DOCUMENTS

- The District as the sole owner of all documents prepared for this Project, reserves the right to reuse all or part of those documents at its sole discretion for the construction of all or part of another project constructed for District. District is not bound by this Agreement to employ the services of Architect who prepared these documents in the event the documents are reused.
- In the event District elects to reuse fully or partially completed documents prepared for this Project on another project, without employing the services of Architect who prepared those documents, District agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold this Architect harmless from and against any and all claims, liability, suits, demands, losses, costs and expenses, including but not limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees, on account of any damages or losses to property or persons, including injuries or death, or economic losses, arising out of that change or use except to the extent the Architect is found to be liable in a forum of competent jurisdiction. In the event the District uses any fully or completed documents without the Architect's full involvement, the District shall remove all title blocks and other information that might identify the Architect and Architect's Consultants.

# **SECTION 14**

# **INSURANCE**

## 14.1 INSURANCE

- 14.1.1 Commercial General Liability and Property Damage Insurance: Architect shall maintain commercial general liability insurance with liability limits of not less than Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) for death, bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage liability, combined single limit, insuring comprehensive general liability of Architect, its agents, employees, its authorized representatives, and Architect's Consultants arising out of and in connection with the performance of Services by Architect on the Project, including the operation of motor vehicles.
- **Professional Liability Insurance:** The Architect shall obtain and, continuously until the termination of any statute of limitations applicable to claims which might arise on account of the design and construction of the Project, maintain in full force and effect a claims-made policy covering negligence, malpractice, errors and omissions in the performance by Architect of its services hereunder, in an amount not less than Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000).
- **14.1.3 Worker's Compensation:** The Architect shall maintain Worker's Compensation insurance with policy limits equal to the required statutory limits covering all employees of Architect.
- **14.1.4 Employer's Liability:** Architect shall obtain and shall maintain employer's liability insurance of at least Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) per accident for bodily injury or disease.
- 14.1.5 Valuable Document Insurance: The Architect shall carry adequate insurance on all drawings and specifications as may be required to protect District in the amount of its full equity in those drawings and specifications, and shall file with District a certificate of that insurance. The cost of that insurance shall be paid by Architect, and District shall be named as an additional insured.
- **Other Insurance Provisions:** The general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:
  - 1. The District, the District Representative, consultants, trustees, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers ("Additional Insureds") are to be covered as additional insureds as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the Architect; instruments of service and completed operations of the Architect; premises owned, occupied or used by the Architect; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Architect. The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the Additional Insureds.
  - 2. For any claims related to the Project, the Architect's insurance coverage shall be

- primary insurance as respects the Additional Insureds. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Additional Insureds shall be in excess of the Architect's insurance and shall not contribute with it.
- 3. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insureds.
- 4. The Architect's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

# **14.1.7 General Insurance Matters:** All of Architect's insurance required under this Agreement shall:

- .1 Be issued by insurance companies admitted to do business in the State of California, with a financial rating of at least an A: VII as rated in the most recent edition of Best's Insurance Reports. Architect shall notify District in writing if any of its insurer(s) have an A.M. Best rating of less than A: VII. At the option of the District, either 1) the District can accept the lower rating; or 2) the Architect shall be required to procure insurance from another insurer.
- .2 Contain an endorsement or certificate executed by the insurance company, requiring thirty (30) days written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested has been given to the District from the insurance company to both parties before cancellation or termination. Architect shall promptly notify District of any material change in the coverage, scope, or amount of any policy.
- .3 All such insurance shall be primary insurance and any insurance of District shall be excess coverage for benefit of District only and non-contributory.
- 4 Prior to commencing any work required under this Agreement Architect shall furnish District with certificates of insurance showing maintenance of the required insurance coverage. Original endorsements affecting general liability and automobile liability coverage shall be provided. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. Each policy endorsement, copy, or a certificate of the policy executed by the insurance company, and evidence of payment of premiums for each policy carried by Architect shall be deposited with District within twenty-one (21) days of execution of this Agreement and prior to the commencement of services, and on renewal of the policy, not less than twenty (20) days before the expiration of the term of the policy. If Architect fails to provide the required insurance, District may in its sole and absolute discretion obtain such insurance at Architect's expense and withhold the cost of any such insurance plus a 10% administrative fee from any amounts due and owing to Architect under this Agreement.

## **DISPUTES**

## 15.1 DISPUTES

15.1.1 If any dispute arises between Architect and District, Architect shall, unless District instructs otherwise, continue performance of all obligations under this Agreement without cessation or delay pending resolution of the dispute, regardless of the size or nature of the dispute. Likewise, District shall continue to make payments for undisputed amounts during such continued performance. Architect waives all rights to seek an injunction, temporary restraining order and any other relief which would stop or delay the progress of the work. All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement may be decided through mediation as the first method of resolution. If this method proves unsuccessful, then all claims, disputes or controversies as stated above may be decided through arbitration, if agreed to by all Parties.

## **SECTION 16**

## **NOTICES**

#### 16.1 NOTICES

All notices or demands are effective when delivered or mailed, certified or registered mail, to the addresses given herein. A personally delivered notice is effective on delivery; a mailed notice is effective three days (3) after notice has been deposited in United States mailboxes postpaid, and addressed as indicated herein. The address herein may be changed by written notice given by such party in the manner provided above. The following are addresses for delivery of notices pursuant to this Agreement.

# TO DISTRICT:

TO ARCHITECT:

East Side Union High School District 830 N. Capitol Avenue San José, California 95133 Attention: Director Facilities

Fax: (408) 347-5115

## SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNMENTS

## 17.1 SUCCESSORS

In as much as this Agreement is intended to secure the specialized Services of the Architect, Architect may not assign, transfer, delegate or sublet any interest therein without the prior written consent of District (which District may grant, deny or condition in its sole and absolute discretion) and any such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without the District's prior written consent shall be considered null and void. Likewise, District may not assign, transfer, delegate or sublet any interest therein without the prior written consent of Architect and any such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without Architect's prior written consent shall be considered null and void.

# **SECTION 18**

# **GOVERNING LAW**

#### 18.1 LAW AND VENUE

- 18.1.1 This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California and the validity, enforceability, and interpretation of any of the clauses of this Agreement shall be determined and governed by the laws of the State of California.
- 18.1.2 The county in which the District administration office is located shall be the venue for any action or proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in connection with or by reason of this Agreement.

# **SECTION 19**

# **EMPLOYMENT STATUS**

#### 19.1 EMPLOYMENT STATUS

19.1.1 Architect shall, during the entire term of Agreement, be construed to be an independent contractor and nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall be construed to create an employer-employee relationship, a joint venture relationship, or to allow District to exercise discretion or control over the professional manner in which the Architect performs the services which are the subject matter of this Agreement; provided always, however, that the services to be provided by Architect shall be provided in a manner consistent with all applicable standards and regulations governing such services.

- Architect understands and agrees that the Architect's personnel are not and will not be eligible for membership in or any benefits from any District group plan for hospital, surgical or medical insurance or for membership in any District retirement program or for paid vacation, paid sick leave or other leave, with or without pay or for other benefits which accrue to a District employee.
- 19.1.3 Should District, in its discretion, or a relevant taxing authority such as the Internal Revenue Service or the State Employment Development Department, or both, determine that Architect is an employee for purposes of collection of any employment taxes, the amounts payable under this Agreement shall be reduced by amounts equal to both the employee and employer portions of the tax due (and offsetting any credits for amounts already paid by Architect which can be applied against this liability). District shall then forward those amounts to the relevant taxing authority.
- 19.1.4 Should a relevant taxing authority determine a liability for past services performed by Architect for District, upon notification of such fact by District, Architect shall promptly remit such amount due or arrange with District to have the amount due withheld from future payments to Architect under this Agreement (again, offsetting any amounts already paid by Architect which can be applied as a credit against such liability).
- A determination of employment status pursuant to the preceding two paragraphs shall be solely for the purposes of the particular tax in question, and for all other purposes of this Agreement, Architect shall not be considered an employee of District. Notwithstanding the foregoing, should any court, arbitrator, or administrative authority determine that Architect is an employee for any other purpose, then Architect agrees to a reduction in District's liability resulting from this Agreement pursuant to principles similar to those stated in the foregoing paragraphs so that the total expenses of District under this Agreement shall not be greater than they would have been had the court, arbitrator, or administrative authority determined that Architect was not an employee.
- 19.1.6 Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on persons or entities not a party to this Agreement.

## MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

# 20.1 MISCELLANEOUS

- **20.1.1 Asbestos:** The Architect agrees that the Project specifications will provide that no asbestos or asbestos-containing materials will be used or substituted in conjunction with the Project.
- **20.1.2 Asbestos Certification:** The Architect agrees that upon completion of all work under the

Project, the Architect will certify to the District that to the best of Architect's knowledge, no asbestos or asbestos-containing materials were used in the Project.

- **20.1.3 Nondiscrimination:** No discrimination shall be made by Architect in the employment of persons to work under this Agreement because of race, national origin, gender, age, ancestry, religion, physical disability, marital status, sexual orientation, or political affiliation of such person. Architect shall comply with all applicable regulations and laws governing nondiscrimination in employment.
- **20.1.4 Use of Name:** The Architect shall not use any name, trademark or service mark of the District without first having received District's written consent to such use.
- **20.1.5 Compliance with the Laws:** The Architect agrees to comply with all applicable laws and regulations.
- 20.1.6 Fingerprinting: Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, District has determined on the basis of the scope of services in this Agreement for this Project, that Architect, Architect's Consultants, and their employees will have only limited contact with pupils at most. Architect shall promptly notify District in writing of any facts or circumstances which might reasonably lead District to determine that contact will be more than limited as defined by Education Code section 45125.1(d). District reserves the right to require Architect, Architect's Consultants, and their employees to comply with Education Code section 45125.2 in the event District at any time reasonably determines that Architect, Architect's Consultants, and their employees will have more than limited contact with pupils at the Project site.
- **20.1.7 Cost Disclosure Documents and Written Reports:** Architect shall be responsible for compliance with California Government Code section 7550, if the total cost of the contract is over five thousand dollars (\$5,000).
- 20.1.8 Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise Participation: Pursuant to Education Code section 17076.11, the District has a participation goal for disabled veteran business enterprises (DVBE's) of at least three (3) percent, per year, of funds expended each year by the District on projects that use funds allocated by the State Allocation Board pursuant to the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act ("Act"). This Project may use funds allocated under the Act. Therefore, to the extent feasible and pertaining to future hiring, the Architect, before it executes the Agreement, shall provide to the District certification of compliance with the procedures for implementation of DVBE contracting goals, appropriate documentation identifying the amount paid to DVBE's in conjunction with the contract, and documentation demonstrating the Architect's good faith efforts to meet these goals.
- **20.1.9 Amendment Waiver:** None of the terms and conditions of this Agreement may be

changed, waived or cancelled orally or otherwise except in writing signed by the parties hereto, specifying such change, waiver or cancellation. A waiver of any breach of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of any preceding or subsequent breach, whether similar or dissimilar.

- **20.1.10 Severability:** If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated thereby.
- **20.1.11 Entire Agreement:** This Agreement including Exhibits hereto, contains the entire understanding of the Parties, and supersedes all other written or oral agreements. Architect shall be entitled to no other benefits other than those specified herein. No changes, amendments or alternations shall be effective unless in writing and signed by both Parties. Architect specifically acknowledges that in entering into this Agreement, Architect relied solely upon the provisions contained in this Agreement and no others.
- **20.1.12 Audit/Inspection of Records.** Architect shall maintain all documents and records prepared by or furnished to Architect during the course of performing the Services for at least three (3) years following completion of the Services. Such records include, but are not limited to, correspondence, internal memoranda, calculations, books and accounts, accounting records documenting its work under its Agreement, and invoices, payrolls, timecards, records and all other data related to matters covered by this Agreement. Architect shall permit District to audit, examine and make copies, excerpts and transcripts from such records at mutually convenient times upon three (3) business days notice. The State of California or any federal agency having an interest in the subject of Agreement shall have the same rights conferred to District by this section. Such rights shall be specifically enforceable.
- 20.1.13 Other Provisions: The Architect shall be responsible for the cost of construction change orders caused directly by the Architect's willful misconduct or negligent acts, errors or omissions. Without limiting Architect's liability for indirect cost impacts, the direct costs for which the Architect shall be liable shall equal the difference between the cost of the change order and the reasonable cost of the work had that work been a part of the originally prepared construction documents. These amounts shall be paid by Architect to District or the District may withhold those costs from amounts owing to Architect.

Neither the District's review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the services required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement, and Architect shall remain liable to the District in accordance with this Agreement for all damages to the District caused by Architect's failure to perform any of the services furnished under this Agreement to the standard of care of the Architect for its services, which shall be, at a minimum, the standard of care of architects performing

similar work for California school districts in or around the same geographic area of the District.

Each party warrants that it has had the opportunity to consult counsel and understands the terms of this Agreement and the consequences of executing it. In addition, each party acknowledges that the drafting of this Agreement was the product of negotiation, that no party is the author of this Agreement, and that this Agreement shall not be construed against any party as the drafter of the Agreement.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date(s) indicated below.

ARCHITECT	EAST SIDE UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
By:	By:
Date:	Date:

Originals:	Architect	☐ District	
		EXHIBIT "A" WORK AUTHORIZATION No. FIRM:	
		PURCHASE ORDER NUMBER:	_
		CAMPUS: PROJECT NAME: PROJECT NUMBER:	
("Agreen	nent") dated June	is issued pursuant to the Master Agreemer 28, 2011, for services rendered between ("Arcistrict"). This Work Authorization shall be for Dollars (\$	chitect") and East Side Union for an amount not to exceed
The Archeevecuted	nitect shall perform Master Agreement t will provide are	m the following services and deliverables in accept and this Work Authorization. The specific services shown in Attachments as listed below incorporation of services for the following work:	vices and deliverables that the
Item No.		Description	Reference
	a. b. c. Construction Ph		days Agreement _40 days dated, vs after 20
No.	I. Construction Ph	eliverables: ction Documents – Complete within_60 calendar 50% Construction Documents – Complete within 90% Construction Documents – Complete 10 day 100% Construction Documents – Complete 10 da ase Deliverables:	Master days Agreement _40 days dated, vs after ays after
No. 01	I. Construction Phase I. Construction Phase I. Construction The project scope Preliminary Pro	eliverables: ction Documents – Complete within_60 calendar 50% Construction Documents – Complete within 90% Construction Documents – Complete 10 day 100% Construction Documents – Complete 10 da ase Deliverables: ction Administration	Master days Agreement _40 days dated, vs after ays after
No.  01  02  05  Perform All work Payment	I. Construction a. b. c. Construction Ph I. Construction The project scop Preliminary Programmes Budgeted Constructions ance:	eliverables: ction Documents – Complete within_60 calendar 50% Construction Documents – Complete within 90% Construction Documents – Complete 10 day 100% Construction Documents – Complete 10 day ase Deliverables: ction Administration  The is described in the attached Project Information  The is described in the attached Project Information  The isological section Cost: \$9,000,000.00  The inequality of the District of the District of the District of the Cost.	Master Agreement days 40 days ss after ays after arrict and to industry standards.
No.  01  02  05  Perform All work Payment deliverab	I. Construction a. b. c. Construction Ph. 1. Construction Ph. 1. Construction Preliminary Programmer Budgeted Construction ance:  a must be completed will not be made be identified about the project scope and the project scope ance:  The project scope and prediction and the project scope and the project sco	eliverables: ction Documents – Complete within_60 calendar 50% Construction Documents – Complete within 90% Construction Documents – Complete 10 day 100% Construction Documents – Complete 10 day ase Deliverables: ction Administration  The is described in the attached Project Information  The is described in the attached Project Information  The isological section Cost: \$9,000,000.00  The inequality of the District of the District of the District of the Cost.	Master Agreement days dated, 20  m Packet.  arict and to industry standards. nce will be based upon the  , 20 All work

# **Project Schedule:**

Time is of the essence for the completion of this project. This Work Authorization includes a Preliminary Project Schedule that references major project milestone dates. The Architect shall review this Preliminary Project Schedule and use it as a basis in the development of their Project work plan/ schedule document. It is recognized that some milestone dates may need to be adjusted based upon issues beyond the Architect's and Owner's control. The Architect shall provide a copy of their Project work plan/ schedule document within one month from the start date for this Project.

# **Reimbursable Expense:**

The Architect may be reimbursed a sum for its reasonable out-of pocket expenses that are incurred and paid for by the Architect in furtherance of performance of its obligations under this Work Authorization in accordance with Section 5.3 of the Agreement.

# **Assigned Personnel and Schedule of Hourly Rates:**

The Architect agrees that the following individual(s) shall be associated with the Project in the following capacities under this Work Authorization:

Architect	Name	Approved Hourly Rates
Principal In Charge	, AIA, Partner	
Project Lead		
Project Architect(s)		
Project Architect(s)		
Other		
Other		

Major Consultants	Name
Civil Engineer	
Cost Consultant	
Surveyor	
Other	

Architect shall not change any of the key personnel listed above without prior written approval by the District, unless said personnel cease to be employed by the Architect and or its Consultants. In either case, District shall be allowed to interview and approve replacement personnel.

# Meetings/Site Visits/Workshops:

The Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below. The Architect shall chair, conduct and take minutes of all coordination meetings during the entire design phase with its consultant(s). The Architect shall invite the District and/or its consultant/representative to participate in these meetings, providing the District representatives reasonable notice. The Architect shall keep a separate log to document design/coordination comments generated in these meetings.

- .1 As required, the Architect shall provide at no additional cost to the District copies of all documents or other information needed for each meeting, site visit, and workshop.
- .2 Each meeting shall last as long as necessary to sufficiently discuss/resolve all items on the agenda and shall be held at the District office or at one of the Project site, unless otherwise indicated.
- .3 The Architect shall provide a draft copy of the minutes to the District within (5) working days per section 4.1.12 of the Master Agreement.

# .4 Project Initiation Phase Meeting

a. Within the first fifteen (15) days of execution of the Work Authorization, or as directed by the District, the Architect shall participate in a Project kick-off meeting for all site(s) to determine the Project intent, scope, budget and schedule.

## .5 Initial Site Visits

- a. The Architect shall visit the Project sites to inventory and document the existing conditions.
  - i. Specific special inspections may be required in addition to the initial site visits.
  - ii. The Architect is responsible for verifying all field conditions, including, but not limited to, as specified in Section 4.1.10 of the Agreement.

# .6 Construction Document Phase Meetings

- a. At the time designated for completion of fifty percent (50%), ninety percent (90%), and one hundred percent (100%) Construction/Contract Document deliverable package, the Architect shall conduct at a minimum one (1) meeting, per package, with the District or District's Construction Manager and or other Representatives designated by District to review the following:
  - i. Presentation of the fifty percent (50%) Construction/Contract Document package for review and comment to proceed with preparation of final plans and specifications.
  - ii. Presentation of the ninety percent (90%) Construction/Contract Document package for review and comment to proceed with preparation of final plans and specifications.
  - iii. Presentation of the one hundred percent (100%) Construction/Contract Document package for review and comment to proceed with preparation of final plans and specifications.
  - iv. Current scope, budget, and schedule.

# .7 Bidding Phase Meetings

a. The Architect is to attend and take part in all pre-bid job conferences with potential bidders, District, District's Construction Manager, and Project Manager.

# .8 Construction Administration Phase Meetings (plus weekly project meetings until entire project is complete)

- a. The Architect shall visit the Project site as necessary or when requested, and in no case less than once per week, sufficient to determine that the Project is being constructed in accordance with the plans and specifications, and to resolve discrepancies in the Contract Documents and to monitor the progress of the construction of the Project.
- b. The Architect shall ensure that consultant(s) visit the project site(s) as necessary to insure project completion and acceptance by the District.

# **Compensation:**

District agrees to pay Architect according to the terms of the Master Agreement and this Work Authorization Form.

Professional fee compensation is a fixed fee as submitted in the Architect's Selection Questionnaire Form. The fee is not connected to the price of construction at bid.

The Architect shall provide copies of project documentation to the District in a properly and clearly labeled binder. In addition, the Architect shall provide an electronic copy of referenced documents on CD Rom, Flash Drive or other storage device designated by the District to the District Representative.

# **Changes:**

[ A wab: 4aa4]

Any change(s) to the Scope of Services and Deliverables, Schedule, Assigned Personnel and/or Compensation shall be approved in advance by District and will require an amendment to this Work Authorization.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Work Authorization under and in connection with the Master Agreement referenced above.

East Cide Union High Coheel District

[Arcintect]	East Side Union High School District	East Side Union Figh School District	
By:	By:		
Name:	Name:		
Title:	Title:		
Date:	Date:		
		4.1.70	

# CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT PHASE DELIVERABLES

# **Construction Documents Drawings**

## **General Information**

Sheet Index

#### Site

Site Plan Site Furnishings (if applicable) Irrigation Plan and Details

## **Plans**

Plans with dimensions Enlarged Plans

#### **Elevations**

All necessary elevations to ensure a complete design All Sections necessary to ensure a complete design

#### **Details**

All Details necessary to ensure a complete design ADA and Title 24 code required details

# **Project Manual**

**Preliminary Specifications** 

# Estimated Project Construction Costs at 50% and 90% Construction Document Submittal

- 1 Provide an estimate of the total construction cost of the project. Estimates for building projects shall be arranged in CSI Uniformat format detailed to **Level 2**.
- 2 Provide a written narrative explaining in detail any deviation from the initial project budget.
- 3 Bring any unusual cost item to the attention of District, District's Construction Manager and/or other Representatives designated by District.
- 4 Architect shall participate in estimate reconciliation meetings as necessary to bring both the architect's and construction manager's estimates to within 5% of each other.

Page Intentionally Left Blank

# MASTER AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES BETWEEN

	A	RCHITECT		
		AN	D	
	EAST	SIDE UNION HIG	H SCHOOL DISTRICT	
			_, 20	
0	_	_	_	
Originals:	Architect	SGI Program Office	District	

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	AMBLE	
	CITALS	
TER	MS AND CONDITIONS	1
SEC	TION 1: GENERAL PROVISIONS	1
1.1	DEFINITIONS	1
	TION 2: RETENTION OF ARCHITECT	
2.1	RETENTION	4
SEC	TION 3: DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT	1
3.1	DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT	
3.1	DESCRIPTION OF TROJECT	
SEC	TION 4: ARCHITECT'S BASIC SERVICE	4
4.1	GENERAL PROVISIONS	
4.2	SCHEMATIC DESIGN DOCUMENTS	
4.3	DESIGN DEVELOPMENT	
4.4	CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT PHASE	
4.5	BIDDING PHASE	
4.6	CONSTRUCTION PHASE	
4.7	AS-BUILT/RECORD DRAWINGS	
4.8	WARRANTY PHASE	
4.9	CERTIFICATION BY ARCHITECT	18
4.10	EXTRA SERVICES	
CEC	TION 5: ARCHITECT'S COMPENSATION & PAYMENT SCHEDULE	10
	COMPENSATIONCOMPENSATION & PAYMENT SCHEDULE	
5.1 5.2	COMPENSATION FOR EXTRA SERVICES	
5.3	COMPENSATION FOR EXTRA SERVICES	
5.4	COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES	
5.5	PAYMENT SCHEDULE	
5.5	THE WELL SCIED CEE	20
SEC	TION 6: INDEMNITY; ARCHITECT'S LIABILITY	24
6.1	INDEMNITY; ARCHITECT'S LIABILITY	24
SEC	TION 7: DUTIES & LIABILITIES OF DISTRICT	24
	DUTIES	
	LIABILITY OF DISTRICT	
SEC	TION 8: PROJECT CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATES	
8.1	ESTIMATE	27
SEC	TION 9: PROJECT SCHEDULE	20
	SCHEDULE	
7.I	DOTTED OLD	

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS cont.**

SECTION 10: SUSPENSION OR ABANDONMENT OF PROJECT AND TERMINATION OF	
AGREEMENT	
10.1 SUSPENSION	29
SECTION 11: STANDARDIZED MANUFACTURED ITEMS	31
11.1 STANDARDS	31
SECTION 12: OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS PREPARED FOR THIS PROJECT	21
12.1 OWNERSHIP	
SECTION 13: REUSE OF DOCUMENTS PREPARED FOR THIS PROJECT	
13.1 DOCUMENTS	32
SECTION 14: INSURANCE	33
14.1 INSURANCE	
GEOGRANA A. D. VADANTERA	
SECTION 15: DISPUTES	
13.1 DISI OTES	
SECTION 16: NOTICES	
16.1 NOTICES	35
SECTION 17: SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNMENTS	36
17.1 SUCCESSORS	
SECTION 18: GOVERNING LAW	
10.1 LAW	30
SECTION 19: EMPLOYMENT STATUS	
19.1 EMPLOYMENT STATUS	37
SECTION 20: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	37
20.1 MISCELLANEOUS	
EXHIBIT "A" WORK AUTHORIZATION SAMPLE	A-1
EXHIBIT "B" DESIGN PHASE APPROVAL LETTER	B-1
Zamen z zelowinimezmino in Ebilek	БТ
EXHIBIT "C" RESPONSIBILITY MATRIX	C-1

# MASTER AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES

	Vendor No.: Purchase Order No.:
	<b>PREAMBLE</b>
and betwee Union High	r Agreement for Architectural Services ("Agreement") is entered on, for work by m ("Architect"), whose address is and the East Side in School District, a California public school district ("District") whose address is 830 N. enue, San Jose, California 95133. Collectively the Architect and the District may be referred to
	RECITALS
<b>A.</b>	<b>District</b> proposes to undertake the construction of new facilities and/or improvement projects which require the services of a duly qualified and licensed architect.
В.	<b>Architect</b> is appropriately licensed to practice architecture in the State of California and is qualified to perform the services as required by this Agreement.
С.	The Parties intend that the Architect provide its services pursuant to this Agreement, which will enable the Project to be designed and constructed without burdening District or its campus staff.
	TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	<b>EREFORE</b> , in consideration of the promise and covenants herein and other valuable on receipt of which is acknowledged by the Parties it is mutually agreed as follows:
	SECTION 1
	GENERAL PROVISIONS
1.1 DEFIN	ITIONS
1.1.1	<b>Addendum:</b> "Addendum" shall mean written or graphic information (including, and without limitation, Drawings, or Specifications) prepared and issued prior to the date of receipt of bids, which modifies or interprets the Bidding Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, or corrections.

- **1.1.2 Additional Services:** "Additional Services" shall mean those services in addition to the Basic Services that are provided by the Architect and authorized in writing by the District and/or assigned District Consultant.
- **1.1.3 Agreed Design Cost Estimate:** "Agreed Design Cost Estimate" is an estimate of all work to be done as shown on the Schematic Design from the Design Development Phase.
- **1.1.4 Agreed Preliminary Estimate of Construction Costs**: "Agreed Preliminary Estimate of Construction Costs" shall consist of the Estimate of Construction Costs with revisions, if any, as indicated by the preliminary studies, schematic drawings, and site utilization plans.
- **1.1.5 Architect:** "Architect" shall mean the name of the architect listed in the first paragraph of this Agreement, including all Architect's Consultants.
- **1.1.6 Architect's Basic Services:** "Architect's Basic Services" shall consist of the design services, including landscape and irrigation design, architectural, civil, structural, mechanical, and electrical engineering services, as required to complete the Project.
- **1.1.7 Architect's Consultants:** "Architect's Consultants" shall mean persons properly skilled and licensed in various aspects of design and construction employed at Architect's sole expense.
- **1.1.8 As-Built Documents:** "As-Built Documents" shall mean the collection of documents assembled and prepared by the Contractor showing the condition of the Work as it was actually built.
- **1.1.9 As-Built/Record Drawings:** "As-Built/Record Drawings" shall mean the final set of drawings prepared by the Architect that incorporates all changes from all Record Drawings, sketches, details, and clarifications.
- **1.1.10 Bid:** "Bid" shall mean the written proposal submitted to District by a contractor in accordance with the Bidding Documents for the construction of the project.
- **1.1.11 Bid Set:** "Bid Set" shall mean the plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Construction Document Phase that DSA has approved and that the District can use to go out to bid for construction of the Project.
- **1.1.12 Bidder:** "Bidder" shall mean the person or entity submitting a Bid.
- **1.1.13 Budgeted Construction Cost:** "Budgeted Construction Cost" shall mean the District's estimated total cost for construction excluding the Architect's fee and excluding the cost of services and materials furnished by the District.

- 1.1.14 Contract Documents: "Contract Documents" shall mean those documents that are required for the actual construction of the Project, including but not limited to the agreement between the District and Contractor; complete working drawings and specifications setting forth in detail the work necessary for constructing the Project to be done and the materials, workmanship, finishes and equipment required for architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical systems and utility service-connected equipment and site work, including but not limited to the "Construction Documents" as used in this Agreement and in the *Work Authorization* (Exhibit "A").
- **1.1.15 Contractor:** "Contractor" shall mean the general contractor or specialty contractor ultimately selected to perform work on the Project or any replacement.
- 1.1.16 **District Consultant:** "District Consultant" shall mean the individual or company who Architect is notified by District has been tasked to manage the entire project including design, construction and post construction phases for the purpose of achieving project objectives including the management of quality, cost, time and scope and shall represent the District in these matters.
- 1.1.17 **District's Representative:** The District shall name a representative in writing who may be from District administration, facilities, or education services who shall represent it in all matters pertaining to the services to be rendered under this Agreement. The District's Representative shall cooperate with the Architect in all matters relative to this Agreement in order to permit the performance of the work without undue delay.
- **1.1.18 District:** "District" shall mean East Side Union High School District.
- **1.1.19 DSA:** "DSA" shall mean the Division of the State Architect.
- 1.1.20 Estimated Project Construction Cost: "Estimated Project Construction Cost" shall mean the estimate, including the "Major Categories of Work" of the projected construction cost representative of the documents and specifications prepared under the direction of the Architect with respect to each phase document development.
- **1.1.21 Inspector of Record:** "Inspector of Record" or "IOR" shall mean a certified Inspector and specialty inspector, approved by the Office of Regulation Services of the Division of State Architect for the Department of General Services of the State of California, to inspect work pursuant to the Field Act (California Education Code section 17280 *et seq.*) and applicable provisions of the California Code of Regulations. The IOR is tasked to act in an on-site capacity and to conduct field inspections of the project during construction.
- **1.1.22 Master Agreement for Architectural Services:** "Master Agreement for Architectural Services" consists of this document and all identified exhibits to it.
- **1.1.23 Principal(s):** "Principal(s)" shall mean individual(s) who are substantive participating owners of the architectural or engineering firm and are authorized to act on behalf of the

firm as signatories to the Agreement for this Project.

- **1.1.24 Project:** "Project" shall mean the work of improvement or new construction as described in the *Work Authorization*. (Exhibit "A")
- **1.1.25 Project Budget:** "Project Budget" shall mean the latest Estimated Project Construction Cost, including hard and soft cost as approved by the District at any applicable phase of design development.
- **1.1.26 Project Schedule:** "Project Schedule" shall mean the entire series of events necessary to design and construct the Project and encompasses the Architects, the Contractors and other Architect's Consultants' work.
- **1.1.27 Revised Agreed Cost Estimate:** "Revised Agreed Cost Estimate" includes an estimate of the cost of all work shown on the final working drawings and specifications from the Construction Document Phase.
- **1.1.28 Services:** "Services" shall mean all labor, materials, supervision, services, tasks, and work that the Architect is required to perform and that are required by, or reasonably inferred from, the Agreement, and that are necessary for the design and completion of the Project.

# **SECTION 2**

# RETENTION OF ARCHITECT

# 2.1 RETENTION

2.1.1 The District retains the Architect to perform, and the Architect agrees to provide to and perform for the District, for consideration and upon the terms and conditions set forth below, architectural and engineering services specified in this Agreement and related incidental services. The Architect agrees to perform such services as expeditiously as possible and consistent with professional skill and care and the orderly progress of the Project. The Architect shall perform all services required under this Agreement in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by Architects professionally qualified to provide the services required by the District.

#### **SECTION 3**

# **DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT**

# 3.1 DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

3.1.1 The project concerning such architectural services shall be provided as required in the *Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")* ("Project")

# **SECTION 4**

# ARCHITECT'S BASIC SERVICE

## 4.1 GENERAL PROVISIONS

- 4.1.1 The Architect shall perform the Services described in this Section, and as identified in the Work Authorization (Exhibit "A" hereto). Performance of these services is included in the basic fee payable by the District to the Architect. Services of the Architect shall include assisting in applying for and obtaining, when requested by the District and or District Consultant, all required approvals from appropriate authorities and agencies. The Architect shall be responsible for all submittals required by the Division of the State Architect ("DSA"), Office of Public School Construction ("OPSC"), and California Department of Education ("CDE") in connection therewith. The Architect shall prepare the Estimated Project Construction Cost; provide consulting and engineering services; provide responses to the District and/or assigned District Consultant; give direction and provide comments with respect to the Project.
- 4.1.2 The Architect shall participate in all required consultations and conferences with District, District Consultants or District Representative and/or other public agencies having jurisdiction over the Project.
- 4.1.3 The Architect shall supply the District with a copy of its work plan developed for its own internal project planning, tracking and coordination. The work plan shall indicate how the Architect plans to provide the scope of services and achieve the results described here, and any additional negotiated scope of work items. District receives the work plan for information only and has no responsibility for approving it.
- As a part of the basic services, the Architect shall employ at its sole expense consultants and personnel ("Architect's Consultants") properly skilled in the various aspects required for the design and construction of a Project. If the Architect's Consultants are engaged in engineering or other aspects of the work, the District shall be advised in writing of their selection prior to performing any work. The Architect's Consultants shall be employed to provide assistance during all aspects of the Project and will include, in addition to design services: review of schedules, shop drawings, samples, submittals, requests for information ("RFI"), requests for clarification ("RFC") attending regular site meetings (if required) and Project close-out. The Architect's Consultants shall also conduct periodic observations of the site to determine conformance to the Project design and specifications and shall participate in the final inspections and development of any "punch list items." The Architect's Consultants shall confer and cooperate with all education planners employed by the District within the scope of work covered by this Agreement.

- 4.1.5 The Architect and Architect's Consultants shall confer and cooperate with District Consultants. The use of District Consultants by District, in no way absolves the Architect's and/or Architect's Consultants' responsibility for providing the professional services as outlined in this Agreement.
- 4.1.6 Prior to the execution of this Agreement, the Architect shall submit for written approval to the District the names of consultant firms proposed for the Project and shall identify the key personnel of the consultant's firm. The District shall have the discretion to accept or reject any firm or person proposed. If a firm or person is rejected, the Architect shall propose an alternate firm or person that is acceptable to the District.
- 4.1.7 The Architect shall maintain an adequate staff including a Project manager, acceptable to the District. The Architect shall retain, at the expense of the Architect and subject to approval by the District, a California licensed architect, landscape architect, and engineers for the structural, electrical, mechanical, and civil portions including off-site improvements of the Project, this also includes any necessary specialty consultant(s) required for the execution of the Project.
- 4.1.8 The Architect shall attend meetings with the District and/or District Consultant regarding the Project, as defined in the *Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")*.
- 4.1.9 The Architect shall consult the District on all matters relative to this Agreement.
- 4.1.10 The Architect shall review existing District data, reports, plans, and other information regarding the site, and perform field investigations as necessary to become familiar with the site. To the extent necessary for Architect to perform its services, the Architect shall make an independent assessment of the accuracy of the information provided by the District concerning reasonably verifiable existing conditions (including but not limited to existing utilities and structures) and the adequacy of available design information/technical reports. The Architect shall rely on the results of its own independent investigations and not on information provided by District. The Architect shall conduct such further investigations of existing conditions as are necessary for Architect to perform the Services and shall advise District of any further design or other services necessary to complete the Project.
- 4.1.11 Upon request and at no additional cost to the District, the Architect shall revise the Construction Documents as requested by District to address any and all change orders and other necessary modifications which were caused by negligent acts, errors, or omissions of Architect or of Architect's Consultants.
- 4.1.12 The Architect and/or Architect's Consultants shall attend design progress meetings as well as any other design related conferences deemed necessary by District and/or District Consultant. Architect will record discussions in these meetings and provide a draft copy of the minutes to the District within (5) five working days. The District will review and

provide comments to the Architect (if necessary). The Architect shall then incorporate the District's review comments, sign, publish, and distribute the final minutes of the design progress meeting.

4.1.13 The Architect shall provide the District with a written monthly status report (MSR) with its monthly invoice. The MSR shall briefly: review project status, budget, and schedule, work performed and contract deliverables. It shall also describe any areas where performance varies from plan, any actual or anticipated problems and Architect's recommendations for preventative or corrective actions. If directed by the District, the Architect shall meet with District or District Representative monthly, or more often as needed, to discuss the MSR and to plan actions. The Architect shall prepare and submit to District, minutes of these meeting, summarizing agreed on decisions and action.

# 4.1.14 Independent Reviews:

- .1 The Project is subject to independent reviews conducted by a District Consultant. The Architect shall cooperate with all such reviews by District Consultant.
- The Architect shall as a part of its Services, prepare written responses to written review comments and shall make changes to the Contract Documents in response to those comments. If the Architect does not deem that a comment requires a change, the Architect shall so state in a written response to the comment providing reasons why no such change shall be implemented. If the District nevertheless directs the Architect to implement the requested change, the Architect will do so, unless doing so would result in a violation of applicable federal or state laws. Should the Architect fail to implement changes as a result of independent review comments and/or as directed by the District, any financial cost for not doing so shall be borne by the Architect.
- .3 The District shall have the right, but not the obligation, to have an independent cost estimate(s) conducted by an estimator designated by the District or the District Consultant and at the expense of the District. The Architect shall as part of its Services be available to answer the estimator's questions regarding the design and attend meetings with the estimator to reconcile the Architect's and the independent estimator's estimate.

# 4.2 CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT PHASE

**4.2.1 Construction Documents:** Upon receipt of a written authorization "phase letter" from the District to proceed, the Architect using approved Design Development Documents shall prepare working drawings, setting forth in detail and prescribing the work to be done, the materials, workmanship, and finishes required for the entire Project. The Construction Documents must include, as well as show, all existing and future utilities

"roughed-in" in their proper location, specifications, bid alternates, special conditions and any updated basis of design. Submittal requirements and deliverables are described in *Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")*.

- 4.2.2 The Construction Documents shall set forth in detail aspects of design, function and construction to be used for estimating the cost of the Project, securing bids for constructing the Project and directing the Contractor in the construction of the Project. Architect agrees that the plans and specifications and estimates of costs it produces shall be full, complete, and accurate, giving such directions that will enable any competent mechanic or builder to carry out.
- 4.2.3 The specifications and drawings approved by District and shall be in such form as will enable: (1) Architect to secure the required government agency approvals including, but not limited to, the DSA (structural safety, fire safety, and handicapped accessibility), the CDE, and local planning agencies; (2) District to secure required approvals and permits for construction of the Project; and, (3) District to obtain by competitive bidding a responsible bid that does not exceed the Revised Agreed Cost Estimate.
- **4.2.4** Bid alternates shall be developed as an integral part of the Construction Documents from the start of the Construction Document Phase. Bid alternates may include:
  - Integrated school logos
  - Custom colors for tracks
  - Replacement of goal posts and other fixtures
  - Site fencing at track level
- **4.2.5** At 90% Construction Document Phase the Architect shall perform a constructability review.
- 4.2.6 If so directed by District at the time of approval of the Design Development Documents, final working drawings and specifications shall be prepared so that portions of the work may be performed under separate contracts or so that the construction of certain buildings, structures, facilities, or other parts of the Project may be deferred.
- **4.2.7** As a part of the **90%** Construction Document submittal, the Architect shall furnish the following:
  - .1 Three (3) copies: Construction Document plans and specifications
  - .2 A PDF copy: Updated cost estimate entitled: *Estimated Project Construction Cost at 90% Construction Document Phase.*
- **4.2.8** The following shall be provided and variously distributed for code and constructability reviews as directed by the District, and or District Consultant:

- .1 Three (3) copies: Construction Documents (drawings and specifications)
- **4.2.9** As a part of the **100%** Construction Document submittal, the Architect shall furnish the following:
  - .1 Three (3) copies: Updated Construction Document (drawings and specifications)
  - .2 Two (2) copies: Electronic files of Construction Drawing plans and specifications on CD-ROM or Thumb Drive
  - .3 One Copy in Electronic PDF Format: Updated cost estimate entitled: *Estimated Project Construction Cost at 90% Construction Document Phase.*

# 4.3 BIDDING PHASE

- **4.3.1 Bidding**: Upon the District's approval the Architect shall assemble the Contract Documents for bidding.
- 4.3.2 The Architect shall furnish all Services required to enable the District to receive bids for a Project which includes: instructions to bidders, advertisement for bids, Construction Documents, general and supplementary conditions, bonds, bid proposals, and bid tabulation forms, and assistance in the pre-bid conference.
- 4.3.3 The Architect shall prepare addenda and clarification documents, interpret Contract Documents for bidders, provide an evaluation of equals and assist the District, as requested, in responding to architectural and engineering questions asked during the bidding phase.
- 4.3.4 The Architect shall provide working drawings and specifications which include alternate bids as deemed advisable by District to bring the Project within the Budgeted Construction Cost.
- 4.3.5 If, after receipt of competitive bids based on Construction Documents, the lowest acceptable bid or the total of all bids exceeds the Budgeted Construction Cost at the time of the bid opening by more than ten percent (10%), the District may, at its discretion, (i) give written approval of an increase in the Budgeted Construction Cost (no additional fees will be due to the Architect from such increase made at this time), or (ii) authorize re-bidding the Project within a reasonable time, or (iii) direct the Architect to revise the Construction Documents without additional charge as necessary to bring the revised Estimated Project Construction Cost/Construction Document Phase with the Budgeted Construction Cost.
- **4.3.6** The Architect shall furnish the District with a written evaluation of the bids.

## 4.4 CONSTRUCTION PHASE

- 4.4.1 Construction Administration of the Construction Contract: The Construction Phase shall commence with the award of the contract for construction and shall end when the Board of Trustees accepts the Project and files a notice of completion ("Notice of Completion"); provided that such acceptance and Notice of Completion shall not constitute an admission by the District that the Project has been completed in accordance with the Contract Documents or in conformance with this Agreement. During the construction phase, the Architect shall perform the services set forth below.
- The Architect shall provide general construction administration services of the Contract Documents for all work based on the Bid Set, prepared by the Architect. The Architect shall visit the Project to review the work at times he or she deems necessary to determine the general quality of the Contractor's performance as the work progresses, and shall visit the Project promptly as requested to do so by the District and/or District Consultant. Construction administration by the Architect shall be in addition to the continuous inspection of the Project Inspector.
- 4.4.3 Before commencing with the work herein, the Architect shall provide the name of its Project Manager or Contract Administrator if different than the previously indicated Project Manager. Neither the Project Manager nor Contract Administrator shall be removed or reassigned without prior written approval of the District, and/or District Consultant, unless the Project Manager or Contract Administrator proves unsatisfactory to the District, or District Consultant, in which case written notification will be sent to the Architect.
- 4.4.4 The Architect shall endeavor to secure compliance by the Contractor and the subcontractors with the Contract Document requirements, but the Architect does not guarantee performance of their Contract Documents.
- 4.4.5 The Architect shall advise and consult the District Consultant, in all matters identified in the Contract Documents, and shall quickly relay all instructions to the Contractor relative to the construction of the Project. The Architect shall provide technical advice to the District, its Consultant and the Project Inspector.
- 4.4.6 The Architect shall provide follow-up to the Contractor's RFI within ten (10) calendar days of submission; a copy of all such communications shall be provided to District and District's Consultant. All submittal submission follow-up are as per the District's front end documents, with which Architect shall review and become familiar to carry out its responsibilities and obligations hereunder. In the event of errors and omissions in the Contract Documents the Architect shall promptly prepare revised documents to correct the error or address the omission.
- 4.4.7 The Architect and/or Architect's Consultants shall provide technical direction to the Project Inspector and shall be available on site to the Contractor and subcontractors as

reasonably required to provide interpretation of the Contract Documents.

- **4.4.8** The Architect shall cooperate with the District and District Consultant during the Construction Phase of the Project.
- **4.4.9** The Architect shall receive and regularly and timely review the Project Inspector's reports.
- 4.4.10 The Architect will attempt to expedite the progress of the construction work by means of written communication and reference to agreed and accepted schedules. The District understands, however, that Architect is not responsible for Project delays caused by Contractors or its subcontractors.
- **4.4.11** The Architect and Architect's Consultants shall submit verified progress reports, as required, to the District via the District Consultant.
- 4.4.12 The Architect shall make written reports to the District and to the District Consultant stating any problems arising during construction, and the changes contemplated in the work as a result of the problem, and the progress of the work.
- 4.4.13 The Architect shall check and process all required material and test reports and report to the Contractor, the District and to the District Consultant any deficiencies in material as reflected by those reports, and recommendations for correction of those deficiencies.
- 4.4.14 In cooperation with the District, the Architect shall prepare and submit to the District and to the District Consultant or to the District Representative for review and approval or disapproval, selections of colors, textures, finishes, and other matters involving an aesthetic decision, for all required items included in the Project.
- 4.4.15 The Architect shall review shop drawings, materials lists, and equipment lists for conformance with Contract Documents, reject those which do not comply, or indicate no exception to those which do comply. No major changes in or deviations from the requirements of the Contract Documents will be permitted at any time without prior written approval from the District. The Architect shall return all reviewed shop drawings to the District Consultant and shall advise the District Consultant of the result of the review.
- 4.4.16 The Architect shall investigate and recommend for acceptance or rejection any substitution of materials and products where requested or required by the terms of the specifications and shall record all substitutions of items in the final as-built specifications provided for in paragraph 4.7.1 of this Section.
- 4.4.17 The Architect shall discuss with the Contractor, the District and the District Consultant any proposed changes required during construction, when the changes alter the function, quality, appearance, or cost of the finished item of work. The Architect shall check all

items of cost caused by such changes. The Architect shall not permit the Contractor to commence work on any changes without first obtaining the written approval of the District.

- 4.4.18 The Architect shall consult with the Project Inspector and/or the Contractor in the compilation of information necessary for the preparation of the As-Built/Record Drawings required by paragraph 4.7.1 of this Section.
- **4.4.19** The Architect shall furnish as many prints, specifications, other necessary documents, and prepare reports to any government entities having jurisdiction as required.
- **4.4.20** The Architect shall review the Contractor's monthly request for payment, and when satisfied as to the amount due, sign the submitted pay request.
- 4.4.21 The Architect shall furnish all details or incidental services necessary for the proper execution of the work, to include all supplemental drawings required to describe the work. The Architect shall complete these details and deliver them to the Contractor to prevent delay to the Contractor's operations. Tracings of all supplemental drawings shall be furnished to District Consultant and shall bear the approvals required, if any, by public agencies having jurisdiction if, during the construction, any dispute arises regarding the meaning of the drawings and/or specifications, the Architect shall render a prompt interpretation.
- In cooperation with the District, the District Consultant and the District Representative, the Architect shall make a pre-final review at such time as the Project is substantially completed. On the basis of the pre-final review, the Architect, in cooperation with the District Consultant, shall prepare and forward to the Contractor and to District a list of all deficiencies, including a list of those of a minor nature, commonly called a "Punch list," and notify the Contractor in a written notice accompanying the list that all of the deficiencies must be corrected prior to acceptance of the Project.
- 4.4.23 In conjunction with the District, the District Consultant and the Contractor, the Architect shall make a final reviews and, when satisfied, inform the District and the District Consultant, upon completion of the Project and prior to payment of 90 percent (90%) of the contract amount to the Contractor that, based on his own personal knowledge all provisions of the Contract Documents and specifications have been complied with and no changes in the work have been made except as authorized in writing by the District.
- During the period of construction, the Architect shall cause consulting engineers to make or cause to be made all reviews necessary to secure the completion of the Project. Upon completion of the Project, the Architect shall cause each consulting engineer to issue or cause to be issued a letter stating that the work falling under his/her administration has been performed in accordance with drawings and specifications and contract requirements. All letters are to be forwarded to the District and to the District Consultant for Project archiving.

- 4.4.25 The Architect shall perform within professional standards to secure compliance by the Contractor with the Contract Document requirements, but is not responsible for the acts or omissions of the Contractor or any subcontractors, or Contractor's agents or employees, or persons performing work on the Project that are not due to the Architect's negligence.
- 4.4.26 The Architect, as well as the District, shall have authority to reject work which does not conform to the Contract Documents. The Architect shall promptly inform the District whenever, in the Architect's opinion, it may be necessary to take action to avoid the improper performance of the Contract Document.

## **4.4.27** The Architect shall:

- .1 Attend the Project pre-construction meeting
- .2 Attend all regularly scheduled construction meetings
- .3 Review and provide comment if any, of the meeting minutes prepared by the District Consultant
- .4 Prepare all documentation for the final change order (with back-up) for written approval by the Board of Trustees
- 4.4.28 The Architect shall not issue orders to the Contractor that might commit the Board of Trustees to extra expenses, or otherwise amend the Contract Documents, without first obtaining the written approval of the District.
- **4.4.29** Upon completion of construction work, the Architect shall be responsible for accomplishment of the following tasks:
  - .1 The Architect shall secure in proper form and transmit to District and to the District Consultant all guarantees, instruction books, diagrams, operation manuals, and changes required of the Contractor. The Architect's mechanical engineering consultants shall review the operation and maintenance manual on all mechanical systems, to be provided by the Contractor for completeness and shall submit said manuals to the District Consultant not less than sixty (60) days prior to the scheduled date for beneficial occupancy.
  - .2 The Architect shall review all construction change orders with the District and its District Consultant to obtain approval.
  - .3 The Architect shall prepare the documentation for the final construction change order to be approved by the Board of Trustees.

.4 The Architect shall submit all other required close-out documentation to any agency having jurisdiction over the Project.

## 4.5 AS-BUILT/RECORD DRAWINGS

# 4.5.1 As-Built Drawings and Record Document Phase:

Upon the filing of the Notice of Completion, and no later than thirty (30) days after completion of construction, and before the receipt of final payment, the Architect shall obtain the completed record set of field-marked documents from the Contractor. Architect shall be responsible for appending markings and attachments from the Contactor's record set, including delineations of RFI responses and change order drawings into the Architect's CAD drawings. Each drawing sheet shall be prominently entitled "As-Built/Record Drawings" and dated.

- Once reviewed by the District, the District Representative or the District Consultant, the Architect shall forward to the District Consultant the complete set of original drawings corrected to As-Built/Record Drawings condition or a complete set of reproducible duplicate drawings. The drawings shall be of such quality that clear and legible prints may be made without appreciable and objectionable loss of detail.
- .2 Prior to the receipt of his final payment, Architect shall forward to the District and to the District Consultant, one (1) clear and legible set of reproductions of the computations, the original copy of the specifications, the As-Built/Record Drawings, the final verified progress report pursuant to Title 21 of the California Code of Regulations, and the Architect's Certificate of Completion.
- **4.5.2** Upon approval of the District, the Architect shall furnish the District with the following:
  - .1 Two (2) copies: As-Built/Record Drawings (prints)
  - .2 Two (2) copies: Electronic files of Construction Documents on CD-ROM

# 4.6 WARRANTY PHASE

- **4.6.1 Warranty Observation Phase:** During all one-year periods of guarantee of the work provided for in the contracts with the Contractor(s), the Architect shall act as District's advisor for the purpose of securing correction of any and all defects and deficiencies covered by guarantees. Architect shall assist District by providing interpretation of the drawings and specifications where requested.
- Eleven (11) months following substantial completion and prior to the expiration of any guarantees, Architect and Architect's Consultants shall visit the Project with District and:

- .1 Review all work and identify observable defects and deficiencies;
- .2 Evaluate the performance, durability, and appearance of installed products, materials, and systems as they relate to suitability for the use intended and to District's construction budget; and
- .3 Submit a written report to District concerning the foregoing.

#### 4.7 CERTIFICATION BY ARCHITECT

Architect certifies that the Architect is properly licensed under the laws and regulations of the State of California to provide the professional Services that it has herein agreed to perform.

Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of the California Labor Code that require every employer to be insured against liability for workers compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and it certifies that it will comply with those provisions before commencing the performance of the services of this Agreement.

Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of California Labor Code that require the payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on certain "public works" and "maintenance" projects ("Prevailing Wage Laws"). Since the Architect is performing services as part of an applicable "public works" or "maintenance" project, and since the total compensation is One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000) or more, the Architect agrees to fully comply with and to require its consultant(s) to fully comply with all applicable prevailing wage requirements of the California Labor Code.

# 4.8 EXTRA SERVICES

- **4.8.1 Architect Extra Services:** Extra services require pre-authorization in writing by the District. When extra services are authorized they shall be provided by the Architect and shall be paid by the District as provided in Section 5.2, Compensation for Extra Services.
- **4.8.2** The following services are not covered by Section 4.1 Architect's Basic Services, of this Agreement and are to be considered Extra Services:
  - .1 Revisions and changes to approved documents and the preparation of alternative or deductive change orders requested by District which are not for the purpose of reducing the cost to within ten percent of the Revised Agreed Cost Estimate as provided in Section 8.1.4.
  - .2 Services for repairs of damages to the Project unless caused, in whole or in part, by Architect's negligence or intentional acts.

- .3 The selection by Architect, at the District's request, of movable furniture, equipment, or articles which are not included in the Contract Document(s).
- .4 Additional services caused by the delinquency or insolvency of the Contractor.
- .5 Preparing measured drawings of existing structures if authorized by the District.
- .6 When directed by District in writing, (i) the employment of special consultants, (ii) the preparation of special delineations and models, and (iii) overtime work by Architect's employees.
- **4.8.3** For the purpose of computing the Architect's final compensation:

# .1 Change Orders:

The fee shall not be decreased because of change orders which provide for a decrease in the construction contract price and which are not the results of an omission, conflicts, or other discrepancies in the contract drawings or specifications, except for those deductive change orders required under Section 4.5.5.

# .2 Omissions:

The fee shall not be increased because of change orders which provide for an increase in construction contract price which are the result of errors, omissions, conflicts, or other discrepancies in the Construction Documents or specifications adjudged by District to be the fault of Architect.

## **SECTION 5**

# ARCHITECT'S COMPENSATION & PAYMENT SCHEDULE

# 5.1 COMPENSATION

- For Construction Document services performed as described in Section 4.4, fee shall be paid as follows:

# .1 Construction Document Phase:

Forty-five percent (45%) of the Basic Fee based upon the District's notice to proceed with Construction Documents, unless otherwise indicated in the <u>Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")</u>. Interim payments during the Construction

Document Phase may be paid at the District's discretion upon District approval of evidence of service rendered, that 50% Construction Documents completed, 90% Construction Documents completed, and 100% Construction Documents completed. Approval letter from District (or its designated representative) and a signed and completed Design Development Phase Deliverables checklist (see *Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")*) signed by Architect showing all deliverables have been completed must be attached to the final invoice at 100% Construction Documents Phase completion. *See Phase Approval Letter (Exhibit "B")*.

## .2 Bidding Phase:

Upon the District's award of the Construction Contract, five percent (5%) of the Basic Fee based upon the District's notice to proceed, unless otherwise indicated in the *Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")*.

# .3 Construction Administration Phase:

Forty-five percent (45%) of the Basic Fee based upon the Architect's approved proposal, unless otherwise indicated in the *Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")*. Fees to be paid in monthly installments, in proportion to the certified completion of construction, rounded to the nearest whole percent, as determined by the District.

# .4 As-Built/Record Drawing Phase:

Following the submittal of District approved As-Built/Record Drawings and Specifications, the Architect must submit all required project closeout documentation. Five percent (5%) of the Basis Fee shall be paid upon Architect's submission to District (or District's designated representative) of satisfactory evidence that Architect has submitted all required documentation for Project closeout.

#### 5.2 COMPENSATION FOR EXTRA SERVICES

- Payment for Architect's extra services, as described in Section 4.10, shall be authorized and determined in the following manner:
  - .1 At its discretion, the District may elect to negotiate a fixed fee for extra services; or
  - .2 For work performed by Principals and employees of the Architect, the Architect shall receive an amount not to exceed established hourly rates (as indicated in the *Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")*, for actual time expended to provide the authorized extra services. The Architect shall provide a rate sheet at the onset of the project listing rates applicable to this Project within the limits listed above or,
  - .3 For work performed by firms or individuals not employees of the Architect (and which Architect is not qualified to perform), but engaged by the Architect to

assist in providing the authorized extra service, the Architect shall receive one and one tenth (1.10) times the amount to be paid by the Architect to the consultants for said services.

#### 5.3 COMPENSATION FOR REIMBURSABLE SERVICES

- 5.3.1 The District will reimburse Architect for certain project related expenditures only upon certification and reasonable proof that the expenses were actually incurred or the services satisfactorily completed after authorization. The District will not be obligated to pay for any service performed by Architect without prior written authorization by District, the District Representative or the District Consultant. Claims for reimbursable expenses shall reflect actual expenditures made by the Architect, employees, or Architect's Consultants working on the Project and be documented by appropriate billing and supporting receipts. Compensation for reimbursable services shall be limited to actual expenses.
  - .1 Travel and Mileage: Trips from the Architect's office to the District Project site or to the District office are not reimbursable. Lodging and food are also not reimbursable.
  - When pre-authorized by the District, other travel expenses in connection with the Project shall be reimbursable. Travel reimbursement shall be limited to the amount that would be authorized by the District.
  - .3 Reprographic Services during Design: Reproduction of drawings, specifications, calculations, cost estimates, program analysis, photos, rendering, plots or similar reproductive instrument required as described in Schematic Phase, Design Develop Phase, Construction Document Phase shall be provided as a part of the work and are reimbursable.
  - Additional print sets requested by the District beyond the quantities listed are reimbursable. Reproduction for internal use by the Architect and Architect's Consultants are not reimbursable.
  - .5 **Postage and Communication:** Postage, package deliveries (UPS or similar carriers) and courier services are reimbursable. Both local and long distance telephone calls (i.e., outside the 408, 510, 415, 650, 707, and 916 area codes) are not reimbursable.
  - **Reprographics for Plan Check Review:** Reproduction of documents for submittals to review agencies (DSA, plan checking firm, State Fire Marshal, etc.) is required as a part of basic services and are not reimbursable.
- .7 Reproductions during Construction: Reproduction and express delivery and, clarifications to Contractor's inquiries, and similar actions to facilitate timely responses during the construction phase shall not be reimbursable

#### 5.4 COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES

Architect warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration contingent on or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the District shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without liability, or in its discretion, to deduct from the contract price or consideration or otherwise recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage fee, gift, or contingency.

#### 5.5 PAYMENT SCHEDULE

Payment under this Agreement shall be made in arrears of the completion of work, upon submittal of an accurate invoice, a sample of which shall be provided to the District prior to commencing any services, as follows:

# .1 Construction Development Services:

Payment to the Architect, after review and approval by the District and any other approving agency, for each phase of Construction Development Services shall be made upon presentation of an invoice for the percentage of the fee due. The payment shall be made in accordance with the Schedule of fees for the Architect's Basic Services.

- During the construction period, payment of the Basic Fee shall be monthly in proportion to the certified percentage of construction completion as provided in Section 5.1.3.3 (Compensation, Construction Administration Phase), with final payment following receipt of approved record drawings, Section 5.1.3.4 (Compensation, Record Drawing Phase).
- 2.3 Payments for Architect extra services, (Section 5.2), and for Reimbursable Expenses, (Section 5.3), if any, shall be made monthly, unless otherwise specified within the respective extra service authorization, upon presentation of the Architect's invoice and approval by the District.
- .4 No deductions shall be made from the Architect's compensation on account of penalty, liquidated damages, or other sums withheld from payments to Contractors, provided the reason for such withholding is not attributable to the fault of the Architect.
- .5 At the conclusion of work on the Project the Architect shall prepare a final invoice for the remaining amount (if any) due. This invoice shall be prominently noted *FINAL INVOICE*. The Architect shall provide a final invoice within thirty

(30) days of District's request. Upon receipt and approval of final invoice, the District shall pay within 35 days.

## **SECTION 6**

## INDEMNITY; ARCHITECT'S LIABILITY

# 6.1 INDEMNITY; ARCHITECT'S LIABILITY

- 6.1.1 To the furthest extent permitted by California law, Architect shall defend, indemnify, and hold free and harmless the District, its agents, representatives, officers, consultants, employees, trustees, and volunteers ("the indemnified parties") from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage or injury of any kind, in law or in equity ("Claim"), to property or persons, including personal injury and/or death, that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, errors or omissions, or willful misconduct of Architect, its officials, officers, employees, subcontractors, consultants, or agents directly or indirectly arising out of, connected with, or resulting from the performances of the Services, the Project, or this Agreement, including without limitation the payment of all consequential damages.
- Architect shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award or decree that may be rendered against the indemnified parties in any Claim. Architect shall also reimburse District for the cost of any settlement paid by District arising out of any Claim. Architect shall reimburse the indemnified parties for any and all legal expenses and costs, including expert witness fees and consultant fees, incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in enforcing the indemnity herein provided to the extent caused by the above agreement to indemnify. Architect's obligation to indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the indemnified parties, or to the amount of insurance obtained or available under Section 14 herein. District shall have the right to accept or reject any legal representation that Architect proposes to defend the indemnified parties.

### **SECTION 7**

# **DUTIES AND LIABILITIES OF DISTRICT**

### 7.1 DUTIES

- 7.1.1 Resources to be supplied by the District: The following resources, surveys, and reports shall be made available to the Architect as required, at the District's expense.
- **7.1.2 District's Representative:** The District shall name a District's Representative who shall represent it in all matters pertaining to the services to be rendered under this Agreement. The District's Representative shall cooperate with the Architect in all matters relative to

this Agreement in order to permit the performance of the work without undue delay.

**7.1.3 Statement of Building Program:** The District shall provide full information as to the requirements for and the education program to be conducted in the Project, including budget limitations and scheduling.

# 7.1.4 Surveys and Tests:

- .1 Site Survey: The Architect shall furnish a legal description and a certified land survey and any surveys and evaluations necessary of the site, to facilitate a complete and accurate design.
- **Reliance:** The services, information, surveys and reports required by this section shall be furnished at District's expense. Architect shall be entitled to rely upon their accuracy and completeness, except that Architect must question in writing to District any information which appears incomplete or incorrect based upon Architect's experience, site observations and knowledge of the Project.
- .4 Checking and Permit Fees: The District shall pay or cause to be paid all fees required in connection with the Project to government agencies having jurisdiction.
- **Legal, Accounting:** The District shall furnish its own legal, accounting, insurance and auditing services, as District may desire.
- .6 Notice of Defects: If the District observes or otherwise becomes aware of any fault or defect in the Project, or nonconformance with the Contract Documents, District shall verbally or in writing advise the Architect. However, District's failure to give such notice shall not eliminate the obligations of Architect regarding the administration of the construction of the Project or other obligations under the Contract Documents; nor require the District to make inspections.
- .7 **Advertising:** The District shall pay the cost of any advertisements for bids that may be required by District.
- .8 Project Inspector: The District shall furnish and provide an inspector, or inspectors, as required during the entire course of construction of the Project. Each inspector shall responsible to and under the direction of Architect and shall also be responsible to and act in accordance with the policies of, District. The cost of employment of such inspector will be borne by the District and paid directly to the inspector.
- .9 **District Staff Inspections:** Requests for changes or substitutions shall be directed to the District Representative. Orders to the Contractor shall be issued

- through Architect, District Representative, and/or District Consultant.
- .10 **Pre-Final Review:** At the discretion of the District, the District may assist the Architect in making the pre-final reviews and in preparation of the list of deficiencies which is required by Section 4.6.22.
- .11 Final Inspection: At the discretion of the District, when notified by the Architect that the "punch list" items have been corrected, the District may accompany the Architect and the Contractor on the final inspection.
- .12 Notice of Completion: When all items are completed to the satisfaction of the District and the Architect, and upon recommendation of Architect, District staff shall recommend that the District's Board of Trustees adopt Notice of Completion.

# 7.2 LIABILITY OF DISTRICT

- 7.2.1 Other than as provided in this Agreement, District's financial obligations under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation provided in this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event shall District be liable, regardless of whether any claim is based on contract or tort, for any special, consequential, indirect or incidental damages, including, but not limited to, lost profits or revenue, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement for the Services performed in connection with this Agreement.
- 7.2.2. District shall not be responsible for any damage to persons or property as a result of the use, misuse or failure of any equipment used by Architect, or by its employees, even though such equipment be furnished or loaned to Architect by District.

# **SECTION 8**

# PROJECT CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATES

# 8.1 ESTIMATES

- **8.1.1 Budgeted Construction Cost**: The Budgeted Construction Cost of this Project is referenced in the *Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")* and represents the District's estimated total cost for construction. The Budgeted Construction Cost excludes the Architect's fee and the cost of services and materials furnished by the District including but not limited to soil tests, inspections, material tests, permits and checking fees, advertising, and equipment. This figure is for information purposes only as a reasonable guide to establishing the preliminary estimates in Sections 8.1.2, 8.1.3 and 8.1.4 below:
- **8.1.2 Agreed Preliminary Estimate of Construction Costs**: The Agreed Preliminary

Estimate of Construction Costs shall be subject to District approval and shall consist of the Estimate of Construction Cost with revisions, if any, as indicated by the preliminary studies, schematic drawings, and site utilization plans completed pursuant to Section 4.2.

- **8.1.3 Agreed Design Cost Estimate:** The Agreed Design Cost Estimate shall include an estimate of all work to be done as shown on the Schematic Design from the Design Development Phase, as completed pursuant to Section 4.3, and shall be established by agreement of the Parties.
- 8.1.4 Revised Agreed Cost Estimate: The Revised Agreed Cost Estimate shall include an estimate of the cost of all work shown on the final working drawings and specifications from the Construction Document Phase, as completed pursuant to Section 4.4, and shall be established by agreement of the Parties. It shall be based upon prevailing construction and market conditions for the purpose, among others, of ascertaining that the cost of the proposed construction falls within the limitations established by District. Until the actual cost of the Project or unit of work is determined by receipt by District of competitive bids based upon the working drawings and specifications, the Revised Agreed Cost Estimate shall be the agreed construction cost of the Project.

## **SECTION 9**

## PROJECT SCHEDULE

# 9.1 SCHEDULE

- 9.1.1 Time for Completion: Time is of the essence and failure of Architect to perform services on time as specified in this Agreement is a material breach of this Agreement. It shall not be a material breach if a delay is beyond the Architect's and/or Architect's Consultant(s)' reasonable control. The completion times set forth below are binding, unless extended in writing by District or the District Representative.
- **9.1.2 Construction Documents:** All obligations set forth in Section 4.4 shall be completed within sixty (60) calendar days after the date on which District approves the documents described in the *Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")*.
- **9.1.3 Delays:** Except as otherwise provided in Section 5.2, any time during which Architect is delayed by acts of negligence of District or its employees or those in a direct contractual relationship with District or by Force Majeure which delays were not or could not have been reasonably foreseen and provided for, and which are not due to any fault or negligence on the part of the Architect, is included in the amount of Architect compensation in Section 5.1 District shall not be liable for the damages to the Architect on account of such delays.
- **9.1.4 Notice of Delay:** The Architect shall, immediately upon ascertainment, notify the

District of any delay in: (i) the preparation and/or production of any of Architect's documents hereunder, (ii) Architect's services, or (iii) connection with any matter attended to by the Architect or with which Architect is familiar (whether or not as the result of an act or omission of another) which would affect or delay the Project or the Project Schedule. Architect shall consult and advise the District in connection with any such delay in its effect on the Project Schedule and shall take such action on District's behalf as District may request in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

9.1.5 Specific Response Time: The District may, in its sole discretion, establish a reasonable response time standard for Architect's performance of services: e.g., review and approval of shop drawings, preparation of change orders and field orders, interpretation of Contract Documents, or review of requests to substitute materials. These specific response times shall be considered to be reasonable and Architect will not exceed them unless, at the time of the action which necessitates a response, Architect indicates that a longer response time is necessary and gives a written explanation of the reasons why an extended response time will be needed. Any extension of the response time must be approved by District. Insufficiency of personnel shall not be an adequate excuse for delay by Architect or Architect's Consultants.

#### **SECTION 10**

# SUSPENSION OR ABANDONMENT OF PROJECT AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

#### 10.1 SUSPENSION

- 10.1.1 Limitations of Agreement: This Agreement is limited to and includes only the work included in the Project described in the attached *Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")* and as determined at the time the schematic drawings and site utilization plans are approved. Any subsequent construction at the site of this Project or at any other site in the District will be covered by and be the subject of a separate *Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")* for architectural services by and between District and the Architect chosen therefore by District.
- 10.1.2 Termination of Architect's Services: The District may suspend or may terminate Architect's services under this Agreement by written notice to Architect because of failure of Architect to perform or to complete services within the time limits established in Section 4 and Section 9, or otherwise to comply with the terms of this Agreement or for any other reason deemed sufficient by District in its absolute discretion, including termination for convenience. Upon termination, Architect shall deliver to District all preliminary studies, sketches, working drawings, specifications, computations, and all other matters to which District would have been entitled at the completion of Architect's services.

- Abandonment of a Portion of Project: The District has the absolute discretion to suspend or abandon all or any portion of the Project contemplated under this Agreement, and may do so upon written notice to the Architect. That abandonment or suspension shall not void or invalidate this Agreement, and the payment provisions under Section 10.1.4, shall be used to determine Architect's compensation. If the entire Project is abandoned, the parties shall be relieved of the remaining executory obligations of the Agreement, but shall not be relieved of any obligations arising prior to said abandonment. Upon receipt of notice of abandonment of the entire project, Architect shall deliver to the District the documents and other matters described in Section 9.1.2.
- 10.1.4 Compensation Due: In the event of termination by District of the Architect's services, or suspension or abandonment of this Project, there shall be due and payable within thirty (30) days after delivery of the documents described in *Work Authorization (Exhibit "A")*, a sum of money equal to the amounts described in 10.1.5, 10.1.6 and 10.1.7 of this Section, as applicable, less compensation to District for damages suffered by District as a result of the Architect's failure, if any, to comply with the terms of this Agreement.
- **Additional Services:** In addition to the payment described above, Architect shall be paid the amount due for any extra services authorized pursuant to Section 4.10.
- **Resumed Projects:** If the Project is suspended in whole or in part for more than four (4) months and if the Project is resumed, the schedule shall be adjusted and the Architect's compensation shall be equitably adjusted to provide for expenses incurred in the resumption of the Architect's services.
- **10.1.7 Design Transfer Agreement:** The District may transfer Design Services to another Architect under this Agreement by written notice to the Architect, and without additional cost or compensation to the District.

### STANDARDIZED MANUFACTURED ITEMS

# 11.1 STANDARDS

11.1.1 Architect shall consult and cooperate with District's staff in the use and selection of manufactured items to be used in the Project. Manufactured items, including, but not limited to, paint, finish hardware, plumbing fixtures and equipment, roofing materials, and floor covering shall be standardized to District's criteria so long as those criteria do not seriously interfere with building design and/or governing codes.

# OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS PREPARED FOR THIS PROJECT

#### 12.1 OWNERSHIP

**12.1.1 License.** Pursuant to Education Code section 17316, this Agreement creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for the District to use, at its discretion, all plans, specifications, original, or reproducible transparencies of working drawings and master plans, preliminary sketches, architectural presentation drawings, structural computations, all estimates and all other documents prepared by Architect pursuant to this Agreement.

The Architect retains all rights to all copyrights, designs and other intellectual property embodied in the plans, record drawings, specifications, estimates, and other documents that the Architect or Architect's Consultants prepares or causes to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement.

The Architect shall perform the Services and prepare all documents under this Agreement with the assistance of Computer Aided Design Drafting (CADD) (e.g., AutoCAD) Technology. The Architect shall deliver to the District, on request, compact disc format and the name of the supplier of the software/hardware necessary to use the design file. As to any drawings that Architect provides in a CADD file format, the District acknowledges that anomalies and errors may be introduced into data when it is transferred or used in a computer environment, and that the District should rely on hard copies of all documents.

In order to document exactly what CADD information was given to the District, Architect and District shall each sign a "hard" copy of reproducible documents that depict the information at the time Architect produces the CADD information. District agrees to release Architect from all liability, damages, and/or claims that arise due to any changes made to this information by anyone other than the Architect or Architect's Consultant(s) subsequent to it being given to the District.

**Termination:** Following the termination of Architect's services, for any reason, or abandonment of all or a portion of the Project, District may utilize the completed drawings, specifications, estimates, and other completed construction documents prepared under this Agreement by Architect as it sees fit. Architect shall deliver to District the following documents upon the District's written request:

One set of the Contract Documents, including the bidding requirements, specifications, and all existing cost estimates for the Project, in hard copy, reproducible format.

One set of fixed image CADD files in DXF format or any other District specified format of the drawings that are part of the Contract Documents.

One set of non-fixed image CADD drawing files in DXF and/or DWG format of the site plan, floor plans (architectural, plumbing, structural mechanical and electrical), roof plan, sections and exterior elevations of the Project.

All finished or unfinished documents, studies, reports, calculations, drawings, maps, models, photographs, technology data and reports prepared by the Architect under this Agreement.

- 12.1.3 After completion of the Project, Architect shall not permit reproductions to be made of any District owned documents without the approval of District and shall refer all requests by other persons to District.
- 12.1.4 The Architect shall not use the drawings or plans produced for District on any other project without District's prior written consent. Architect shall defend and indemnify District from any claim that such documents infringe the copyright or trade secrets of another.

#### **SECTION 13**

# REUSE OF DOCUMENTS PREPARED FOR THIS PROJECT

#### 13.1 DOCUMENTS

- The District as the sole owner of all documents prepared for this Project, reserves the right to reuse all or part of those documents at its sole discretion for the construction of all or part of another project constructed for District. District is not bound by this Agreement to employ the services of Architect who prepared these documents in the event the documents are reused.
- In the event District elects to reuse fully or partially completed documents prepared for this Project on another project, without employing the services of Architect who prepared those documents, District agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold this Architect harmless from and against any and all claims, liability, suits, demands, losses, costs and expenses, including but not limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees, on account of any damages or losses to property or persons, including injuries or death, or economic losses, arising out of that change or use except to the extent the Architect is found to be liable in a forum of competent jurisdiction. In the event the District uses any fully or completed documents without the Architect's full involvement, the District shall remove all title blocks and other information that might identify the Architect and Architect's Consultants.

## **SECTION 14**

# **INSURANCE**

#### 14.1 INSURANCE

- 14.1.1 Commercial General Liability and Property Damage Insurance: Architect shall maintain commercial general liability insurance with liability limits of not less than Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) for death, bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage liability, combined single limit, insuring comprehensive general liability of Architect, its agents, employees, its authorized representatives, and Architect's Consultants arising out of and in connection with the performance of Services by Architect on the Project, including the operation of motor vehicles.
- **Professional Liability Insurance:** The Architect shall obtain and, continuously until the termination of any statute of limitations applicable to claims which might arise on account of the design and construction of the Project, maintain in full force and effect a claims-made policy covering negligence, malpractice, errors and omissions in the performance by Architect of its services hereunder, in an amount not less than Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000).
- **14.1.3 Worker's Compensation:** The Architect shall maintain Worker's Compensation insurance with policy limits equal to the required statutory limits covering all employees of Architect.
- **14.1.4 Employer's Liability:** Architect shall obtain and shall maintain employer's liability insurance of at least Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) per accident for bodily injury or disease.
- 14.1.5 Valuable Document Insurance: The Architect shall carry adequate insurance on all drawings and specifications as may be required to protect District in the amount of its full equity in those drawings and specifications, and shall file with District a certificate of that insurance. The cost of that insurance shall be paid by Architect, and District shall be named as an additional insured.
- **Other Insurance Provisions:** The general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:
  - 1. The District, the District Representative, consultants, trustees, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers ("Additional Insureds") are to be covered as additional insureds as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the Architect; instruments of service and completed operations of the Architect; premises owned, occupied or used by the Architect; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Architect. The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the Additional Insureds.
  - 2. For any claims related to the Project, the Architect's insurance coverage shall be

- primary insurance as respects the Additional Insureds. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Additional Insureds shall be in excess of the Architect's insurance and shall not contribute with it.
- 3. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insureds.
- 4. The Architect's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

# **14.1.7 General Insurance Matters:** All of Architect's insurance required under this Agreement shall:

- .1 Be issued by insurance companies admitted to do business in the State of California, with a financial rating of at least an A: VII as rated in the most recent edition of Best's Insurance Reports. Architect shall notify District in writing if any of its insurer(s) have an A.M. Best rating of less than A: VII. At the option of the District, either 1) the District can accept the lower rating; or 2) the Architect shall be required to procure insurance from another insurer.
- .2 Contain an endorsement or certificate executed by the insurance company, requiring thirty (30) days written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested has been given to the District from the insurance company to both parties before cancellation or termination. Architect shall promptly notify District of any material change in the coverage, scope, or amount of any policy.
- .3 All such insurance shall be primary insurance and any insurance of District shall be excess coverage for benefit of District only and non-contributory.
- 4 Prior to commencing any work required under this Agreement Architect shall furnish District with certificates of insurance showing maintenance of the required insurance coverage. Original endorsements affecting general liability and automobile liability coverage shall be provided. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. Each policy endorsement, copy, or a certificate of the policy executed by the insurance company, and evidence of payment of premiums for each policy carried by Architect shall be deposited with District within twenty-one (21) days of execution of this Agreement and prior to the commencement of services, and on renewal of the policy, not less than twenty (20) days before the expiration of the term of the policy. If Architect fails to provide the required insurance, District may in its sole and absolute discretion obtain such insurance at Architect's expense and withhold the cost of any such insurance plus a 10% administrative fee from any amounts due and owing to Architect under this Agreement.

#### **DISPUTES**

#### 15.1 DISPUTES

15.1.1 If any dispute arises between Architect and District, Architect shall, unless District instructs otherwise, continue performance of all obligations under this Agreement without cessation or delay pending resolution of the dispute, regardless of the size or nature of the dispute. Likewise, District shall continue to make payments for undisputed amounts during such continued performance. Architect waives all rights to seek an injunction, temporary restraining order and any other relief which would stop or delay the progress of the work. All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement may be decided through mediation as the first method of resolution. If this method proves unsuccessful, then all claims, disputes or controversies as stated above may be decided through arbitration, if agreed to by all Parties.

#### **SECTION 16**

#### **NOTICES**

#### 16.1 NOTICES

All notices or demands are effective when delivered or mailed, certified or registered mail, to the addresses given herein. A personally delivered notice is effective on delivery; a mailed notice is effective three days (3) after notice has been deposited in United States mailboxes postpaid, and addressed as indicated herein. The address herein may be changed by written notice given by such party in the manner provided above. The following are addresses for delivery of notices pursuant to this Agreement.

# TO DISTRICT:

TO ARCHITECT:

East Side Union High School District 830 N. Capitol Avenue San José, California 95133 Attention: Director Facilities

Fax: (408) 347-5115

#### SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNMENTS

#### 17.1 SUCCESSORS

In as much as this Agreement is intended to secure the specialized Services of the Architect, Architect may not assign, transfer, delegate or sublet any interest therein without the prior written consent of District (which District may grant, deny or condition in its sole and absolute discretion) and any such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without the District's prior written consent shall be considered null and void. Likewise, District may not assign, transfer, delegate or sublet any interest therein without the prior written consent of Architect and any such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without Architect's prior written consent shall be considered null and void.

# **SECTION 18**

## **GOVERNING LAW**

#### 18.1 LAW AND VENUE

- 18.1.1 This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California and the validity, enforceability, and interpretation of any of the clauses of this Agreement shall be determined and governed by the laws of the State of California.
- 18.1.2 The county in which the District administration office is located shall be the venue for any action or proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in connection with or by reason of this Agreement.

### **SECTION 19**

# **EMPLOYMENT STATUS**

#### 19.1 EMPLOYMENT STATUS

19.1.1 Architect shall, during the entire term of Agreement, be construed to be an independent contractor and nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall be construed to create an employer-employee relationship, a joint venture relationship, or to allow District to exercise discretion or control over the professional manner in which the Architect performs the services which are the subject matter of this Agreement; provided always, however, that the services to be provided by Architect shall be provided in a manner consistent with all applicable standards and regulations governing such services.

- 19.1.2 Architect understands and agrees that the Architect's personnel are not and will not be eligible for membership in or any benefits from any District group plan for hospital, surgical or medical insurance or for membership in any District retirement program or for paid vacation, paid sick leave or other leave, with or without pay or for other benefits which accrue to a District employee.
- 19.1.3 Should District, in its discretion, or a relevant taxing authority such as the Internal Revenue Service or the State Employment Development Department, or both, determine that Architect is an employee for purposes of collection of any employment taxes, the amounts payable under this Agreement shall be reduced by amounts equal to both the employee and employer portions of the tax due (and offsetting any credits for amounts already paid by Architect which can be applied against this liability). District shall then forward those amounts to the relevant taxing authority.
- 19.1.4 Should a relevant taxing authority determine a liability for past services performed by Architect for District, upon notification of such fact by District, Architect shall promptly remit such amount due or arrange with District to have the amount due withheld from future payments to Architect under this Agreement (again, offsetting any amounts already paid by Architect which can be applied as a credit against such liability).
- A determination of employment status pursuant to the preceding two paragraphs shall be solely for the purposes of the particular tax in question, and for all other purposes of this Agreement, Architect shall not be considered an employee of District. Notwithstanding the foregoing, should any court, arbitrator, or administrative authority determine that Architect is an employee for any other purpose, then Architect agrees to a reduction in District's liability resulting from this Agreement pursuant to principles similar to those stated in the foregoing paragraphs so that the total expenses of District under this Agreement shall not be greater than they would have been had the court, arbitrator, or administrative authority determined that Architect was not an employee.
- 19.1.6 Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on persons or entities not a party to this Agreement.

#### MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

# 20.1 MISCELLANEOUS

- **20.1.1 Asbestos:** The Architect agrees that the Project specifications will provide that no asbestos or asbestos-containing materials will be used or substituted in conjunction with the Project.
- **20.1.2 Asbestos Certification:** The Architect agrees that upon completion of all work under the

Project, the Architect will certify to the District that to the best of Architect's knowledge, no asbestos or asbestos-containing materials were used in the Project.

- **20.1.3 Nondiscrimination:** No discrimination shall be made by Architect in the employment of persons to work under this Agreement because of race, national origin, gender, age, ancestry, religion, physical disability, marital status, sexual orientation, or political affiliation of such person. Architect shall comply with all applicable regulations and laws governing nondiscrimination in employment.
- **20.1.4 Use of Name:** The Architect shall not use any name, trademark or service mark of the District without first having received District's written consent to such use.
- **20.1.5 Compliance with the Laws:** The Architect agrees to comply with all applicable laws and regulations.
- 20.1.6 Fingerprinting: Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, District has determined on the basis of the scope of services in this Agreement for this Project, that Architect, Architect's Consultants, and their employees will have only limited contact with pupils at most. Architect shall promptly notify District in writing of any facts or circumstances which might reasonably lead District to determine that contact will be more than limited as defined by Education Code section 45125.1(d). District reserves the right to require Architect, Architect's Consultants, and their employees to comply with Education Code section 45125.2 in the event District at any time reasonably determines that Architect, Architect's Consultants, and their employees will have more than limited contact with pupils at the Project site.
- **20.1.7 Cost Disclosure Documents and Written Reports:** Architect shall be responsible for compliance with California Government Code section 7550, if the total cost of the contract is over five thousand dollars (\$5,000).
- 20.1.8 Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise Participation: Pursuant to Education Code section 17076.11, the District has a participation goal for disabled veteran business enterprises (DVBE's) of at least three (3) percent, per year, of funds expended each year by the District on projects that use funds allocated by the State Allocation Board pursuant to the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act ("Act"). This Project may use funds allocated under the Act. Therefore, to the extent feasible and pertaining to future hiring, the Architect, before it executes the Agreement, shall provide to the District certification of compliance with the procedures for implementation of DVBE contracting goals, appropriate documentation identifying the amount paid to DVBE's in conjunction with the contract, and documentation demonstrating the Architect's good faith efforts to meet these goals.
- **20.1.9 Amendment Waiver:** None of the terms and conditions of this Agreement may be

changed, waived or cancelled orally or otherwise except in writing signed by the parties hereto, specifying such change, waiver or cancellation. A waiver of any breach of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of any preceding or subsequent breach, whether similar or dissimilar.

- **20.1.10 Severability:** If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated thereby.
- **20.1.11 Entire Agreement:** This Agreement including Exhibits hereto, contains the entire understanding of the Parties, and supersedes all other written or oral agreements. Architect shall be entitled to no other benefits other than those specified herein. No changes, amendments or alternations shall be effective unless in writing and signed by both Parties. Architect specifically acknowledges that in entering into this Agreement, Architect relied solely upon the provisions contained in this Agreement and no others.
- **20.1.12 Audit/Inspection of Records.** Architect shall maintain all documents and records prepared by or furnished to Architect during the course of performing the Services for at least three (3) years following completion of the Services. Such records include, but are not limited to, correspondence, internal memoranda, calculations, books and accounts, accounting records documenting its work under its Agreement, and invoices, payrolls, timecards, records and all other data related to matters covered by this Agreement. Architect shall permit District to audit, examine and make copies, excerpts and transcripts from such records at mutually convenient times upon three (3) business days notice. The State of California or any federal agency having an interest in the subject of Agreement shall have the same rights conferred to District by this section. Such rights shall be specifically enforceable.
- 20.1.13 Other Provisions: The Architect shall be responsible for the cost of construction change orders caused directly by the Architect's willful misconduct or negligent acts, errors or omissions. Without limiting Architect's liability for indirect cost impacts, the direct costs for which the Architect shall be liable shall equal the difference between the cost of the change order and the reasonable cost of the work had that work been a part of the originally prepared construction documents. These amounts shall be paid by Architect to District or the District may withhold those costs from amounts owing to Architect.

Neither the District's review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the services required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement, and Architect shall remain liable to the District in accordance with this Agreement for all damages to the District caused by Architect's failure to perform any of the services furnished under this Agreement to the standard of care of the Architect for its services, which shall be, at a minimum, the standard of care of architects performing

similar work for California school districts in or around the same geographic area of the District.

Each party warrants that it has had the opportunity to consult counsel and understands the terms of this Agreement and the consequences of executing it. In addition, each party acknowledges that the drafting of this Agreement was the product of negotiation, that no party is the author of this Agreement, and that this Agreement shall not be construed against any party as the drafter of the Agreement.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date(s) indicated below.

ARCHITECT	EAST SIDE UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
By:	By:
Date:	Date: